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Five Years Financial Summary
T EMBEHE

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

BEARA=THLFE

Results E¥ 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EBBAE —TT)N\F —TTLF —TTNF —TTRHRF

Turnover L

(RMB’000) (AR#F 1) 287,780 152,826 145,059 115,581 187,965
(Loss) profit attributable  # x5 45 A fE(h

to equity holders of the (/&1 ) & Fl

Company (RMB’000) (ARMEFIT) (18,547) (112,622 7,864 (247,520) (19,105)
(Loss) earnings per share & A% (E518 ) % F

(RMB cents) (AREEAM)
— Basic . i (4.33) (26.41) 2.25 (70.72) (5.46)
— Diluted — B85 N/AFEH NATEB 222 N/ATEA NATER
AT 30 JUNE BR-<A=+H
Assets and liabilites BERE&E 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

“BEAE —TT)\F —ZTTLF —TTRF —_TEHF

Total assets BELE

(RMB’000) (ANREBFT) 247,020 279,400 329,402 183,910 331,617
Total liabilities BERTE

(RMB’000) (AR FIT) (235,294)  (248,565) (212,283) (154,626) (157,949)
Net asset value BEFE

(RMB’000) (ANREBFT) 11,726 30,835 117,119 20,284 173,668
Net asset value per share &R & &E % E

(RMB cents) (AR 2.73 7.19 33.47 8.37 49.62
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR & wm Mo AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group achieved a turnover
of approximately RMB287,780,000 (2008: approximately
RMB152,826,000) which represented an increase of
approximately 88.31% compared to the last corresponding year.
The increase in turnover is mainly attributable to the trading of
electronic components by one of the Group’s Hong Kong
subsidiaries.

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB18,547,000 (2008: approximately
RMB112,622,000 which included an amount of approximately
RMB60,700,000 set aside in respect of the alleged guarantee
which are said to be issued by a PRC subsidiary of the Company).

For the debt-restructuring proposal on approximately
RMB135,434,000, we are continuing our negotiations with the
Bank of China, Shenzhen branch.

At present, the Hong Kong economy is recovering from the global
economic tsunami of last year. The economic stimulus packages
and measures taken by the world governments gradually took
effect and the financial and investment climate has vastly
improved. In the first half of 2009, the impacts of the financial
crisis on the global economy lingered. Under the weakening
export, a series of economic stimulus measures launched by the
PRC government in the fourth quarter of last year have begun to
take effect, boosting the economy of the country in the first half of
the year. The strong supportive policies of the PRC government
have driven consumer spending and consumption demand in the
PRC, and in turn presented room for development of various
industries.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the consumer electronics
products market in Asia, especially the PRC, has recovered
rapidly which lead to a significant growth in our electronic
components and related products trading business. Despite an
increase in turnover of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2009, the Group’s gross profit margin has decreased as trading
in electronic components is very competitive with a relatively high
cost of sales, thus resulting in lower profit margins as compared
to the same period last year. As compared to the same period
last year, 95.17% of the Group’s turnover was generated by
trading in mobile phones, machines of vertical impregnating line
and the natural resources and industrial equipments which
commanded a higher gross margin.

f1 %5 Bl B

HE-_ZEZANFNA=Z+tHLEFE AEEHNE
¥ ARE287,780,0000t (ZEZNFE : HHA
R #152,826,0007T ) + kb 2= F [A Hi1Z & £988.31% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR & wm Mo AT

In May 2009, Hill Light Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Ms. Wong Sio Leng pursuant to which
Hill Light has conditionally agreed to acquire for and Ms. Wong
conditionally agreed to dispose of the sale shares, being the entire
issued capital of the Ocean Vast Corporation Limited, at a total
fair value consideration of RMB178,579,000. The project was
completed in August 2009.

In August 2009, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental agreement
dated 20 August 2009) with Mr. Ho Man Hung pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire for and Mr. Ho
has conditionally agreed to dispose of the sale shares, being the
entire issued capital of Boom Lotus Holdings Limited, a company
established in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, at a total consideration of
HK$590,000,000.

Further details of the above acquisitions are set out in the sections
“SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES” and “EVENTS
AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS” below.

As the series of economic stimulus measures launched by the
PRC government in the fourth quarter of last year have begun to
take effect, the Group is optimistic about the property investment
business in the PRC and has been redeploying resources to the
property investment business. In view of the economic prospect
of Zhuhai, it is the intention of the Company to continue to look
for projects for property development and investment in Zhuhai.
The above acquisitions are expected to contribute revenue to the
Group from 2010.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

(@)

Technology (formerly classified under
Project and Technical Services segment)

The segment of automation products has experienced a
slow down due to adverse market conditions. As a result,
turnover during this period came almost to a standstill.
Though the automation and mobile handset markets are
showing signs of recovery, management is taking a
cautious approach and continue to critically review whether
potential projects and business opportunities would benefit
the Group or not.

Trading

The Group’s trading business comprises of distribution of
imported automation products, trading of mineral resources
such as iron ore, electronic related components and mobile
phone modules. The Group noted there was a change of
demand in the markets of infrastructural and natural
resources, also with reference to the research reports of
international markets, the Group will concentrate its
resources to the mobile modules trading business in the
short run.

Property investment

The investment properties comprise six units of office
premises in Hong Kong with total saleable areas of
approximately 4,582 sq. ft. and the R & D Centre in
Shenzhen with total floor area of approximately 15,084 sq.
meters.

After the year-end the Group acquired two property
projects in Zhuhai, PRC. For further details of the above
acquisitions please refer the sections “SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENT AND MATERIAL ACQUISTIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES” and
“EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS” below.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2009, the total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB247,020,000, a decrease by approximately
11.59% as compared to 30 June 2008. As at 30 June 2009, the
Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB118,757,000
(2008: RMB125,112,000), approximately RMB74,734,000 of
which is owed to Bank of China, Shenzhen branch. Although a
judgment was made in favour of the bank by the Shenzhen
Arbitration Commission, the bank has principally agreed not to
demand immediate full repayment from the Group and we have
numbers of discussions for the restructuring of the outstanding
debts into a loan secured against the R&D Centre. The Company
is in the process of negotiation for the restructuring of the
guarantee provision of RMB60,700,000 and short-term bank loan
of approximately RMB74,734,000 with the bank. However, the
terms and repayment schedules have not yet been finalised. It is
expected that both the Company and the bank target to finalise
the restructure proposal (the “Restructuring Proposal”) before the
end of December 2009.

Taking into account of the broadening of revenue base, the
finalisation of the Restructuring Proposal, the ability of the
Company to raise additional funds, and the Company’s right to
defend the questionable claim, the Directors are confident that the
Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 30 June
2009 was HK$42,918,000 divided into 429,180,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each (2008: HK$42,868,000 divided into 428,680,000
shares of HK$0.10 each). As at 30 June 2009, the issued
convertible redeemable preference share capital was
HK$35,000,000 divided into 350,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each
(2008: HK$35,000,000 divided into 350,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each) and the convertible redeemable preference A share capital
was HK$11,000,000 divided into 110,000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each (2008: HK$11,000,000 divided into 110,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each). As at 30 June 2009, none of the convertible
redeemable preference shares and convertible redeemable
preference A shares were converted into ordinary shares.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings of
approximately RMB86,734,000 on a short-term basis and was
mainly in Renminbi. Out of such borrowings, the loan of
approximately RMB74,734,000 bears fixed interest rate whilst the
loan of approximately RMB12,000,000 bears interest at prevailing
market rates. There are no known seasonal factors in our
borrowing profiles.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs in Renminbi,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Although the
exchange rates of United States dollars and Renminbi against
Hong Kong dollars were relatively unstable during the year under
review, since the Group has no financial instrument for hedging
purposes, treasury and funding policies, therefore the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates is considered minimal.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s certain investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and time
deposits with an aggregate net carrying value of approximately
RMB73,905,000 were pledged to banks for securing revolving
loans and general banking facilities granted to the Group (2008:
approximately RMB77,654,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES

On 19 May 2009, Hill Light Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Hill Light”), entered into the
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Ms. Wong Sio
Leng (“Ms. Wong”) pursuant to which Hill Light has conditionally
agreed to acquire for and Ms. Wong conditionally agreed to
dispose of the sale shares, being the entire issued capital of the
Ocean Vast Corporation Limited (“Ocean Vast”), at a total fair
value consideration of RMB178,600,000 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$203,000,000) (the “Ocean Vast Acquisition”).

Upon Completion, Hill Light has become the sole shareholder of
Ocean Vast and therefore be effectively interested in 60% equity
interest in the BELEFRESBESFEBMR AR (Zhuhai Special
Economic Zone Hegiang Industrial Company Limited*) (“Project
Company”), a company established in the PRC with limited liability
and is owned as to 60% by the PRC Company and 40% by an
independent third party.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
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The only major asset of the Project Company is the project land.
The project land is situated at South of Yuehai West Road,
Gongbei, Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC and
occupies approximately 11,878.40 square meters with a planned
gross floor area of 36,375.96 square meters. The project land will
be developed into a residential and commercial complex with car
parking spaces and the construction is scheduled to be
completed in the second half of 2010. According to the Real
Estate Ownership Certificate (FEHE#EFE) (Document No.: Yue
Fang Di Zheng Zi. No. (C6561410) registered on 31 October
2008, the Project Company has the right to use the Project Land
for terms expiring on 10 July 2077 and 10 July 2047 for residential
and commercial purposes, respectively.

The Ocean Vast Acquisition constituted a major transaction under
the Listing Rules. The Ocean Vast Acquisition has been approved
by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 17 July 2009, details of the Ocean Vast
Acquisition is set out in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 21 May 2009 and 30 June 2009, respectively.

MATERIALDISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material disposal of subsidiaries or
associates during the year ended 30 June 2009.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

On 11 August 2009, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental
agreement dated 20 August 2009) with the Mr. Ho Man Hung
(“Mr. Ho”) pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire for and the Mr. Ho has conditionally agreed to dispose of
the sale shares, being the entire issued capital of Boom Lotus
Holdings Limited (“Boom Lotus”), a company established in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-owned by
Mr. Ho, at a total consideration of HK$590,000,000 (the “Boom
Lotus Acquisition”).
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Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the consideration
for the Boom Lotus Acquisition shall be settled by the Company
by a combination of the issuance and allotment of consideration
shares and cash.

Boom Lotus is an investment holding company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 7 December 2007 with limited liability
and is wholly-owned by the Mr. Ho. Subject to the share charge,
the principal asset of Boom Lotus is its 100% equity interest in
Pine Global Investments Limited (“Pine Global”) which in turn
holds 50% equity interest in ZKERIKEMERZE AR AT
(Zhuhai Zhongzhu Real Estate Development Company Ltd.*)
(“Zhuhai Zhongzhu).

Zhuhai Zhongzhu is a sino-foreign joint venture incorporated in the
PRC on 8 November 2005 with limited liability and is owned as to
50% by Pine Global. The major asset of the Zhuhai Zhongzhu is
the project which is consisted of two development properties,
being Property A and Property B.

Property A is situated at West Santaishi Road, North Xiaguang
Road, Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (1 Bl E 8R4 ¥k
WAL =2 A - E¥E4LRA)) and occupies approximately
48,382.70 square meters with a gross floor area of approximately
140,816.93 square meters. The construction of Property A was
completed on 30 March 2009 and Property A has been
developed into a residential and commercial complex with car
parking spaces. As at the date of this report, approximately 60%
of the residential and commercial units under Property A have
been sold to buyers.

Property B is situated at South Renmin West Road, West
Santaishi Road, Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (2
BRAKSTEMARAEE - —=AKAAD and occupies
approximately 57,762.92 square meters with a planned gross
floor area of approximately 171,336.68 square meters. The
construction of Property B is preliminarily scheduled to commence
in October 2009 and be completed in May 2011. Property B wiill
be developed into a residential and commercial complex with car
parking spaces. As mentioned in the foregoing, Property A was
completed and approximately 60% of the residential and
commercial units under Property A have been sold to buyers.
Zhuhai Zhongzhu will retain the proceeds from such sale until the
Completion and it intends to apply them for the development of
Property B.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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The Boom Lotus Acquisition constituted a very substantial
acquisition under the Listing Rules. The Boom Lotus Acquisition
has been approved by the shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 October 2009, details of
the Boom Lotus Acquisition is set out in the announcement and
circular of the Company dated 20 August 2009 and 23
September 2009, respectively.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) the design, supply and
integration of automation and control system; (ii) trading of
automation products and electronic components; (i) property
investment; and (iv) trading of mobile modules. As disclosed in the
section “SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES” and above, it is the intention of the Company to
hold the project for property development and investment in
Zhuhai. In view of the economic prospect of Zhuhai, the Directors
are of the view that the Ocean Vast Acquisition and the Boom
Lotus Acquisition of the Group are in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole. Save as disclosed above, the
Group will continue to seek new business development
opportunities.

Proposed change of name

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of Directors passed on 27
October 2009, the Company announced the proposed change of
the Company’s name to “China Uptown Group Company Limited
(‘PR IR EBABR A E)")". The change of name will be subject
to the passing of a special resolution by the shareholder of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Proposed change of financial year end date

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of Directors passed on 27
October 2009, the Company announced the change of the
financial year end date from 30 June to 31 December.

Extension and change of terms of convertible
redeemable preference shares

On 23 October 2009, the Company entered into a second
supplemental agreement to the Subscription Agreement to (a)
allow the Preference Shares Conversion Period to be extended
automatically for a period of twelve (12) months with effect from
each expiry date of the Preference Shares Conversion Period
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unless (i) holder of Preference Shares serves a written notice on
the Company notifying its intention of not extending the
Preference Shares Conversion Period for a further twelve (12)
months not later than seven (7) days prior to the expiry date of the
Preference Shares Conversion Period, and (ii) the Company
agrees not to extend the Preference Shares Conversion Period for
a further twelve (12) months upon receiving such notice; and (b)
amend the terms of the Subscription Agreement such that the
Preference Shares become transferable.

In addition, on 23 October 2009, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement to (a) extend the Preference A Shares
Conversion Period for a further 12 months from the expiry date of
the Preference A Shares Conversion Period such that Preference
A shareholder shall have the right to convert the Preference A
Shares held by it at any time from the date of issue to 10
December 2010; (b) allow the Preference A Shares Conversion
Period to be extended automatically for a period of twelve (12)
months with effect from each expiry date of the Preference A
Shares Conversion Period unless (i) Preference A shareholder
serves a written notice on the Company notifying its intention of
not extending the Preference A Conversion Period for a further
twelve (12) months not later than seven (7) days before the expiry
date of the Preference A Shares Conversion Period, and (i) the
Company agrees not to extend the Preference A Shares
Conversion Period for a further twelve (12) months upon receiving
such notice; and (c) amend the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement such that the Preference A Shares become
transferable.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

GEARING RATIO

At 30 June 2009, the gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of
total borrowings over net assets, was about 5.16 (2008: 2.88).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant capital commitments as at
30 June 2009.

AR RIFNEEBRFTEAREBERERB ZE
mMBRTAERERAARAELERBA B
HAEBAERELEAREBRG+ @A RiAER
AWEIZEME RETERELREREG+ -
8 A+ R(o)& =T 388 & 2 16 3K 18 55 B A] DA 4R
BE-

o RZZETAFTAZFT =R ARAESE
— 17 B B 1 ok B0 78 1 o () 9B SEARR BRI B B H
EmcAER+ A BREPERR  BEAK
FEAGRERBELEARETZARE_T—FTF
TZATHEAZEMNRE  SEFAZEBLARE
BREER: Ot EETARBRBEHTER+ =
EA - BELARERBAER2 B REER - RIE)
BEABR B AR B SARE R 2 fEim B Al T E
RERAARBBELEABN BHNEEETE
REFAREBHRE+ @A Ri)AR KRR ZBE
Mg RABTEREEARBHRE+ @A (0F
FTEEHREZ GRRBEEARA] AREE -

5 & & #
DEMARZ FEHNGA W HREM I -

BREXE
R-ZBAEAAS TR AREHAEE A

BRBERINEEFHENE)ABS16 (ZEZTN\F:
2.88) °

BEXkiE

RZZEZANFAA=ZTHILE AEEYEETFAE
RH)EARAIEERIR -

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR & wm Mo AT

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

For the year ended 30 June 2009, loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB18,547,000 (2008: loss amounted to approximately
RMB122,622,000).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2009, the Group employed a total of approximately
30 full time employees (2008: 40) in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Total staff cost for the year ended 30 June 2009 was
approximately RMB4,828,000 (2008: approximately
RMB17,038,000). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the basis of market trends, future plans and the performance
of individuals, which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from
provident fund scheme and state-managed social welfare
scheme, share options will also be awarded to employees
according to assessment of individuals’ performance.

LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

During the year, regarding the litigation as to the claims of
approximately RMB9,500,000 raised by the main contractor of
the Shenzhen R & D Centre, the relevant PRC court has made a
judgement in favour of the plaintiff in December 2007. In January
2008, the Company submitted the appeal application to the
relevant PRC court. In May 2008, the Company and the main
contractor entered into a mutual agreement to withdraw from the
litigation by settling a reasonable amount. But in early September
2008, the main contractor applied through the relevant China
court to demand the Company settle the retainer fee due being
RMB550,000 together with penalty. On 10 September 2008, the
Company submitted a counterclaim to the relevant court
counterclaiming the contractor breach of the subject agreement
and is pending decision from the court.

In addition, Techwayson Industrial (Shenzhen) Limited (“TIL”), a
major subsidiary (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company is in the best efforts to negotiate with the Bank of
China, Shenzhen branch to finalise the terms of the debt-
restructuring proposal on the RMB74,734,000 loan of the
Shenzhen subsidiary and the RMB60, 700,000 guaranteed loan.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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On 17 July 2008, TIL received a writ of summons issued by the
Intermediate People’s Court, Shenzhen City, the PRC, in respect
of a claim of approximately RMB22,000,000 made by an
independent third party (the “Party”) against TIL, for a guarantee
alleged to have been given by TIL in favour of the Party in
November 2005. TIL has appointed a firm of PRC legal counsel to
assist in the gathering of information and the investigation into the
circumstances giving rise to the claim. The said firm of PRC legal
counsel has defended the questionable claim during the court
hearing late last year and is waiting for the court’s judgment.

On November 2008, TIL (as plaintiff), brought a civil claim (the
“Claim”) against L/ KAIZELREHEHR A A (Shanghai Tian
Ke Hua Power Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Tian Ke Hua’) and fi%
BYRIEIRMD AR AR (X'an Ying Feng Technology Co., Ltd*)
(“Ying Feng”) (both Tian Ke Hua and Ying Feng are defendants)
for, inter alia, breach of contracts in respect of payment of service
fees for certain construction works performed by TIL in the
People’s Republic of China.

On 21 April 2009, a judgment (the “dudgment”) in respect of the
Claim was handed down by E/&WE—FHARZER (First
Intermediate People’s Court of Shanghai*) which was received by
the Company on 7 May 2009. According to the Judgment, TIL
was awarded the outstanding service fees of RMB14,860,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,886,000) together with

liquidated damages calculated at the rate of RMB0.001 per day.

Tian Ke Hua filed a notice of appeal (the “Appeal”) against the
Judgment with _E&ME A ARZER (Higher People’s Court of
Shanghai*) within the time limit for appeal stated under the Civil
Procedure Law of the PRC on 14 May 2009. To the knowledge
and information of the directors of the Company, the date of
hearing of the Appeal has not been decided as at the date of this
announcement.

The Company has already made provision to write off the
outstanding service fees which should be paid by Tian Ke Hua
and Ying Feng in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2008. The Directors expect
that there will not be any immediate financial effect on the Group’s
earnings, net assets and liabilities.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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On 20 October 2009, the Company received a writ of summons
from Ying Feng. Ying Feng (as plaintiff) brought a civil claim at 1L
mERATHRZAEREER (Intermediate People’s Court of
Changzhi City, Shanxi Province*) against TIL, (as defendant), for
damages of approximately RMB6,970,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,920,000) in respect of product liability arising
from defects in the Programmable Logic Controllers system used
in &3 blast furnace top gas recovery turbine unit project (“TRT”)
(Changgang TRT project*) designed and manufactured by TIL.
Hearing has been scheduled for 25 November 2009.

TIL have decided to defend against the claim and will seek legal
advice in respect of the merits of the claim. The directors of the
Company expect that there will not be any immediate adverse
financial effect on the earnings, net assets and liabilities of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

PROSPECTS

In order to overcome the adverse impact of the financial tsunami,
both the Hong Kong and PRC Governments have launched
various measures to improve the economy. As such, both the
Hong Kong and PRC property markets have achieved a significant
rebound due to the combined positive results of a stimulus fiscal
policy, an eased monetary policy and much improved liquidity.

Whilst the Group will continue to explore business opportunities in
Technology and Trading, we are optimistic about the long-term
development of the property market in PRC which showed steady
growth in terms of sales volume and selling price. Therefore the
Group will focus on how to strategically increase our property
investment in PRC, especially in Zhuhai since with the strong
support of the Zhuhai Municipal Government to strengthen the
environment and infrastructure, such as the bridge that connects
Hong Kong, Zhuhai and Macau (which will start construction by
the end of 2009), the light railway connecting Zhuhai and
Guangzhou etc., it is expected that demand for residential/
commercial property in Zhuhai will continue to grow in the coming
years.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
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Furthermore, the Company proposed to change its name in order
to better reflect the Company’s new emphasis on property
investment and management. Also, in order to strengthen the
management of the recent major acquisitions in Zhuhai and to
explore good investment opportunities, the Company is planning
to establish a wholly-owned project investment company in
Zhuhai and set up a team of property management professionals
to manage our property projects.

With the recent major acquisitions and reorganisation of our
management focus, the Company is confident to achieve its
objective to enhance operation performance and profitability of
the Group and generate satisfactory returns for the shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: Nil).

PUBLICATION ON ANNUAL RESULTS
AND ANNUAL REPORT

The result announcement for the year ended 30 June 2009 is
available for viewing on the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the
Company at www.quaypoint.com.hk. The annual report will be
despatched to the shareholders of the Company and will also be
available for viewing at the aforesaid websites in due course.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank the shareholders for their continuous support to the
Company and extend my appreciation to all management and
staff members for their contribution and dedication throughout the
year.

By Order of the Board
The Quaypoint Corporation Limited

Chen Xian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 October 2009
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Xian, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director
and vice-chairman of the Company on 12 October 2007 and
redesignated as Chairman on 30 November 2007 and a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen is one of the
founders of a sizeable property development company in Zhuhai,
the PRC and has been a member of the senior management of a
subsidiary of that company. Mr. Chen was mainly responsible for
the investment and development of real estate projects of such
companies. Before joining those companies, Mr. Chen worked as
a senior member of certain stated-owned companies and the
local authority. He has more than 15 years of extensive experience
in the investment and development of real estate projects. He
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the Asia
International Open University (Macau).

Mr. Chen has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Chen is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$520,000, which
is covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Chen’s and the Company’s performance.
The remuneration package of Mr. Chen is determined by
reference to his duties, responsibilities and expected time
commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chen is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Chen did not hold any directorships in any other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange
during the three years preceding the date of this Report. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, save as 3,500,000 options granted to
him, Mr. Chen was not interested or deemed to be interested in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”).
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Mr. Lau Sai Chung, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 September 2006 and re-designated
as executive Director on 30 November 2007. Mr. Lau was also
appointed as chief executive officer of the Company on 30
November 2007. He is currently also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree in
Commerce with major in Accounting from the University of
Alberta, Canada and has over 20 years’ experience in the field of
banking and finance. He had been an independent non-executive
director of Dickson Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 313), a
company listed on main board of the Stock Exchange during the
period from August 2003 to March 2006.

Mr. Lau has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Lau is entitled to an annual package of HK$650,000, which is
covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus payment
as determined by the remuneration committee of the Company
based on Mr. Lau’s and Company’s performance. The
remuneration package of Mr. Lau is determined by reference to
his duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to the
Company’s affairs.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau has personal interest in
148,000 Shares, representing 0.02% of the issued share capital
of the Company and he is also granted 3,352,000 options.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Lau and did not hold any directorships in any other
listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock
exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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Mr. Tsim Sze Hon, aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 December 2007. He is currently also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsim holds a Bachelor
Degree in Design Study from London Metropolitan University. He
had over 10 years’ experience in toys manufacturing industry. Mr.
Tsim is a director of Weina (BVI) Limited which is the holder of the
460,000,000 Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares issued
by the Company. Mr. Tim is also granted 2,000,000 options. Mr.
Tsim is also the son of Mr. Tsim Wing Kong who is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Weina (BVI) Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Tsim has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Tsim is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$260,000, which
is covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Tsim’s and Company’s performance. The
remuneration package of Mr. Tsim is determined by reference to
his duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to the
Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsim is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Tsim did not hold any positions in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any other
listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock
exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Tsim was not
interested or deemed to be interested in any other shares or
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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Mr. Xiong Jianrui, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 December 2008. Mr. Xiong graduated with a
bachelor degree in Information Engineering from Xi Bei Institute of
Telecommunications Engineering in 1983. He is currently a
director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xiong has
over 25 years experience in automation & control industry, also is
very experienced with investment business environment in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr. Xiong was a non-executive
director of T S Telecom Technologies Limited, a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8003) from 2
October 2007 to 28 December 2007. He had been appointed as
an executive director of the Company (formally known as
Techwayson Holdings Limited) since 16 May 2003 and had been
appointed as chairman since 30 March 2004. On 4 November
2005, due to personal commitments, he resigned as an executive
director and chairman of the Company.

Mr. Xiong has entered into a service contract with the Company
without a fixed term and is subject to retirement by rotation and
reelection at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr.
Xiong is entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$520,000, which
is covered by his service contract, with discretionary bonus
payment as determined by the remuneration committee of the
Company based on Mr. Xiong’s and the Company’s performance.
The remuneration package of Mr. Xiong is determined by
reference to his duties, responsibilities and expected time
commitment to the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Xiong is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Xiong did not hold any directorships in any other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange
during the three years preceding the date of this Report. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, save as 3,500,000 options granted to
him, Mr. Xiong was not interested or deemed to be interested in
any shares or underlying shares of the Company pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Xia Dan, aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 21 August 2007 and re-designated as an executive
Director on 12 October 2007. Ms. Xia has been re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 31 December 2008. Before Ms. Xia
was appointed as a non-executive Director on 21 August 2007,
she had been a member of the senior management of a sizeable
property development company in Zhuhai, PRC and was
responsible for its project investments analysis. Ms. Xia also
worked for various companies in the PRC and North America and
has over 18 years of extensive experience in strategic planning
and marketing in the fields of construction, financial and foreign
trading industries. Ms. Xia graduated from Shenyang University
with Bachelor of Science in Architecture and holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from New York Institute of
Technology. She is currently a director of Techwayson Industrial
Limited, which is a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Xia has entered into a written service contract with the
Company as a non-executive director of the Company without a
fixed term and is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Ms. Xia is entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$260,000, which is covered by
the services contract, with discretion bonus payment as
determined by the remuneration committee of the Company
based on Ms. Xia’'s and the Company’s performance. The
remuneration package of Ms. Xia is determined by reference to
her duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to the
Company’s affairs.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Xia is the beneficial owner
of Mega Edge International Limited which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company holding 79,500,000 ordinary shares,
representing 13.14% equity interest in the capital of the Company.
Ms Xia is also granted 3,500,000 options. Ms. Xia is deemed to
be interested in 79,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company held
by Mega Edge International Limited under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xia is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, and did not hold any directorships in any other listed
companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock exchange
during the three years preceding the date of this Report. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Xia was not interested or deemed to
be interested in any other shares or underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yiu Chik, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 March 2008. Mr. Chong is also the
chairman and member of nomination committee and members of
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Chong graduated from Wuhan University in China with major
in Politics and Economics. He is currently the director and general
manager of Eliter International Development Limited and he has
over 30 years’ management experience in the field of China and
foreign trades. He is also the vice president of China’s Foreign
Trade Association, Honorary president of Shantou Overseas
Friendship Association, Honorary Chairman of Universal Petrol-
Chemical Development Limited and member of Standing
Committee of Returned Oversea Chinese Association of
Guangdong.

Mr. Chong has not entered into any written services contract with
the Company and is not appointed for a specific term. However,
he is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Mr. Chong is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Chong is not covered by any services
contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Chong is determined
by reference to performance of the Group and of Mr. Chong with
reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chong is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Chong did not hold any positions in the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any
other listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other
stock exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as 348,000
options granted to him, Mr. Chong was not interested or deemed
to be interested in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael, aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 November 2006. Mr.
Poon is also the chairman and member of audit committee and
members of nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Poon is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA
Australia. He holds a bachelor degree in administrative studies
with York University in Canada and a master degree in practicing
accounting with Monash University in Australia. Mr. Poon worked
for an international accounting firm and was responsible for
providing business advisory and assurance services for some
listed clients. He has over 14 years of experience in financial
reporting, business advisory, auditing, taxation, accounting,
merger and acquisition. Mr. Poon was the chief financial officer,
qualified accountant, company secretary and authorised
representative of Sonavox International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8226), which is a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, from March 2002 to June 2008. He is the independent
non-executive director of Sun International Group Limited (Stock
Code: 8029) since September 2008 and he is currently the chief
financial officer and qualified accountant of Enviro Energy
International Holdings Limited (“Enviro”) (formally known as “Sys
Solutions Holdings Limited”) (Stock Code: 8182), both are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He previously was the
independent non-executive director of Enviro for the period from
December 2006 to July 2008 and company secretary and
authorized representative of Enviro for the period from July 2008
to October 2008.

Mr. Poon has not entered into any written service agreement with
the Company and is not appointed for a specific term. However,
he is subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Mr. Poon is entitled to an
annual remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment.
The remuneration of Mr. Poon is not covered by any service
contract. The remuneration package of Mr. Poon is determined
by reference to performance of the Group and of Mr. Poon with
reference to prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Poon is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Poon did not hold any positions in the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any
other listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other
stock exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as 200,000
options granted to him, Mr. Poon was not interested or deemed
to be interested in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Choi Kai Ming, Raymond, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 December 2008. Mr.
Choi is also the chairman and member of remuneration committee
and members of audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Choi graduated with a bachelor degree in
Production Engineering from The University of Aston in
Birmingham, UK in 1976. In 1979, he was qualified as a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales, and
in 1980 as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In the last thirty years he had served Price
Waterhouse, China Light and Power, Guangdong Nuclear Power,
China Everbright Holdings, as well as running his own accounting
practice in Hong Kong. Mr. Choi is currently a qualified accountant
of Tai-l International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1808). Mr. Choi
was previously the company secretary and authorized
representative of Tai-I International Holdings Limited for the period
from November 2006 to April 2008.

Mr. Choi has not entered into any written service contract with the
Company and is not appointed for a specific term. However, he is
subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company. Mr. Choi is entitied to an annual
remuneration of HK$180,000 without any bonus payment. The
remuneration of Mr. Choi is not covered by any service contract.
The remuneration package of Mr. Choi is determined by reference
to his duties, responsibilities and expected time commitment to
the Company’s affairs.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Choi is not connected with any
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Choi did not hold any positions in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and did not hold any directorships in any other
listed companies on the Stock Exchange and any other stock
exchange during the three years preceding the date of this
Report. As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as 348,000
options granted to him, Mr. Choi was not interested or deemed to
be interested in any shares or underlying shares of the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 30 June 2009, except for the deviation of the
Code Provision A.3.2 and breach of rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rule
which requires that every board of director of a listed company
must include at least three independent non-executive directors.
During the period under review, the Board had only 2 independent
non-executive Directors since 28 November 2008 as Mr. Ng
Kwok Chu Winfield has retired on 28 November 2008 and did not
offer himself for re-election as independent non-executive
Director. But on 31 December 2008, the Company has appointed
a new independent non-executive Director, therefore with effect
from 31 December 2008, the Company has complied the Code
Provision A.3.2 and the rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors of the Company confirm that all Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year under review.
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COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value. As at 30 June 2009,
the Board consists of eight Directors, comprising four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Xian (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSIM Sze Hon

Mr. XIONG Jianrui (appointed on 31 December 2008)

Non-executive Director

Ms. XIA Dan (re-designated as non-executive Directors on
31 December 2008)
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon (retired on 28 November 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The directors’ biographical information are set out on pages 18 to
25 of this Annual Report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each
executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so
as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently. There is no
relationship among the members of the Board of Directors.

The Board has delegated the Executive Directors with authority
and responsibility by handling the management functions and
operations of the day-to-day business of the Company, while
reserving certain key matters for the approval by the Board. The
types of decisions to be taken by the Board include annual and
interim period financial reporting and control, equity fund raising,
declaration of interim dividend and making recommendation of
final dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions under
Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and making
recommendation for capital reorganization or scheme
arrangement of the Company.

ESEHRRESEIED

EXEe A5 REEERARENERLEE
EERTBRREE-R_ZTAFA=1TH"
EEeA B\ RETER ETERENEHRT
B ANV TEFTR=RBILFHTES -
BE-—RBUFRATEFEAEMEANEREREX
ETRAREZ R ERYBEETERMH -

FTEESE (BREBIYFRTEST)RELALFZAE
BERBMOCEEATHE=-FEHRESE -
HITES

BREEAE (FEF)

Bt B E (FT A )

EEHLL

BRI EE (R ZEZENF+_A=+—BEZT)
FEHITES

XADanZ+ (R_ZEZENF+_A=+—HEHA
EAEIERITTESE)

ERABEE R_ZEENF+—A -+ N\BHEMT)
BIYEHITES

dERE A

BEEAA

FHEASTE R—FZEN\F+_A=+—HEZT)
REERE R=FTZFTN\F+—-A=ZFTNHERD)

EEREFBIANAFRFIBEFR25H - Fi A H
TEFURAKTEEHENEREHER RO -
ZHRTEFHABERUMT 2 ENER LB
MATHR B - BEFEXNB CAALERRK -

EESEBEEAQR—YEERAEEETE
HRARAZHTESTEBE KETEEZESED
EREEgHE - FHESSELATZENE
FFERTHYBERLEE RAEE Tk
FHIRE MR ﬁiﬁﬁﬂi SR E DR $EHFL‘W
BABURIMAZEETRMHM RS  MERBAR
A ERSGEI L ELEE -

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER

27



Corporate Governance Report

CEFARE

During the year under review, four regular meetings of the Board
were held with at least fourteen days’ notices given to all Directors
and are provided with relevant information to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. A

P oS
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Director who considers a need for independent professional EEe@3%  HAB KB f@EREMEELER o
advice in order to perform his duties as a Director may convene,
or request the secretary of the Company to convene, a meeting of
the Board to approve the seeking of independent legal or other
professional advice.
The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetingsandthe Board EEe@REE=EZEe@XIKENAFHEEZ €%
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below: HEIBEREINRTE
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HEZS® SaBEzEH
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EEHa EET EHXZEET FWESE REESE
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. CHEN Xian BRE & 4/4 - - -
Mr. LAU Sai Chung B LA 4/4 — — —
Mr. TSIM Sze Hon EFEEEE 4/4 — — —
Mr. XIONG Jianrui AR B 3 5 A&
(appointed on 31 December 2008) (RZZEENF+ZA=+—HEZT) 2/2 — - -
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Gerard J. MCMAHON EREHEE
(retired on 28 November 2008) (R=ZFZN\F+—A=Z+N\BRE) 11 11 - -
Ms. XIA Dan (re-designated as non-executive XIA Dan#
Directors on 31 December 2008) (R—ZEENF+_A=+—8#HATA
FEMITESE) 4/4 — - —
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAERITES
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield REREE
(retired on 28 November 2008) (E/LEE)\@ +—AZ+NHRME) 11 11 11 11
Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael Bkt 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik H R854 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond ERUER A
(appointed on 31 December 2008) (R=ZZZEN\F+_A=+—HEZMT) 2/2 11 - —
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Director are
segregated and are held by Mr. CHEN Xian and Mr. LAU Sai
Chung respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning and the management of the operations of the
Board, while the Chief Executive Director takes the lead in the
Group’s operations and business development. There is a clear
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company which provides a balance of
power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date of
their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the annual
confirmation of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The existing Nomination Committee has the following three
members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik (Chairman)

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

ERFRATHER
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The functions of the nomination committee are reviewing and
supervising the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifying qualified individuals to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to the
Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination of Directors
should be taken into consideration of the candidate’s qualification,
ability and potential contribution to the Company. A candidate to
be appointed as independent non-executive Director must also
satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

During the year under review, there were changes of the Directors
and four meetings were held to consider the changes of the
Directors. Every newly appointed Directors during the year had
going through the selection process stated as above and the re-
election of the Directors retired in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Remuneration Committee with the
following written terms of reference in compliance with the code
provision of the code. The Remuneration Committee has 3
members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
(Chairman)

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the specific remuneration packages
of all executive Directors and senior management by reference to
the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time.

Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out on Note 17 to
the condensed consolidated financial statements. During the year
under review, no Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009

REAZRBEZVEARILEEETFS 2RE
MENAK : MEAERALTHIEFEKE
HEBUFATESTZBELE UWRAEEEH
ZERERERFHERES -

REFEEHDERE HAER %%@%mo%
LEEHAEEREAZEE -EHRHEAR
CEBEER EZITABIYIRTEEZFEA
MBRE FHBRBIEIA3MGHEH 2B MR -

REBEFEFRN BEFTALRERZEN EFEE
BIORERNEREREZE -BEHERIES
REFRNEKBLABERF  MRBEARF QA
MASRZERTNETER

HWEST

ARBRILFEMEE W ETFRMEXFTIZZAT
EERELE KRFOKRERBLFERTES -
FMEEERAB=RKE

BYFATES

BERALE (RZTZT)\F+_A=+—HEZT)
(£/FE)
EEE LA
HRELE
[EFLEE RZZETENF+—AZ+N\BEMT)

FNEE eI EREAMRTIRIEZBEET LS
@EEFZ TR REE TEMBTEER
SREBEZHFEMEN MRAESTSRERZ -
Iﬂ%§$AT%% ZEEBERRAEHN  FH

EHPATEERaREEEZAETHAR -

EEMe2ABRHINGEMBRRMFE17 - R
CEFEN BEEE2TEEAT M2 -



Corporate Governance Report

A s S/ £
TEERMRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the code provisions of the code.
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee of the Company
consists of the following members:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael (Chairman)

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu, Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The chief responsibilities of the audit committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of
such auditors; reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual reports
and accounts of the Group; and supervising the financial reporting
process and effectiveness of internal control system of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed and
made recommendation for the Board’s approval of the draft
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2009 and the draft unaudited interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2008,
discussed the accounting policies and practices which may affect
the Group with the management and the Company’s auditors,
made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
for the approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting
of the Company, reviewed the fees charged by the external
auditors; and reviewed the internal control system of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Grant Thornton, the Group’s auditor, was appointed as the
Company’s external auditors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 November 2007 until
the next annual general meeting but they resigned on 12 August
2008. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed to fill the
vacancy of Grant Thornton on 8 September 2008.

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009
were performed by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provide by external auditors is set out in the
following table:

% BB BN &

RARAE-_ZFTZTLF+-A=ZTHETZER
BFEAGL AEEZTIERBMHYE STE1T
(MEEDERRERARR ZINEZEE - T8
ETERRBEFRERLE BER_ZFTZTNFNA
T_HABRERARBAZEREM R_TZNEFN
ANB - EXxPM(EB)EAMEBMBERA

BEZERARRZZEENAEMG SRR

AEEBRE_ZTZENFAAA=ZTHLEFEZEZHE
THEAEXTN(ER)GMEBMARIAE
# -

SNBZ BB T IR A E R B EERBRE 2B
Nz BREREINTX:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered FriR AR 5 for the year ended 30 June
Bt EfER
BEAA=1THILLEE
2009 2008
—EBEAE —EFENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT T
Audit services % EUR S
— SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited — EXFRA(BEB)GME
BRI AER A A 735 680
Non-audit services IEZER T
— SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited Special — B (FE)SHME
engagement BHRBERARFELZE 600 -
— Grant Thornton Special engagement — et ETZE 20 420
Total fee paid/payable for the year FREN ERZERBE 1,355 1,100
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which
gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2009, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 46 of the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the
Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business
operations. The Directors have adopted an internal control policy
for the Group. The internal control is fundamental to the
successful operation and day-to-day running of a business and its
assists the Company in achieving its business objectives. The
policy has been developed with a primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic framework of
internal control and risk management. The Company’s internal
control system comprises a well established organizational
structure and policies and standards. Procedures have been
designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication, and to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The purpose of the Company’s internal control is
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks or failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Company’s objective.
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The Directors have conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the system or internal control of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders and, in particular,
use general meetings to communicate with shareholders and
encourage their participation. The Company also uses various
other means of communication with its shareholders, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements,
circulars and additional information on the Group’s business
activities and development on the Company’s website:
www.quaypoint.com.hk.
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Report of Directors
EEQWE

The directors of the Company are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
engaged in (i) the design, supply and integration of automation
and control system; (ii) trading of automation products and
electronic components; (i) property investment; and (iv) trading of
mobile modules. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments and
geographical segments for the year ended 30 June 2009 is set
out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the annual
report on pages 47 to 143. The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2009.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is
set out on page 4 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and prepaid lease payments of the Group
during the year are set out in Notes 18 to 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary share capital
and share options are set out in Notes 30 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERENCE SHARES

Details of the redeemable convertible preference shares issued by
the Company during the year are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares of
the Company on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2009, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 52 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the year
is as follows:

FEERRMER

RAFER AEETEEFPEEHERLHE
BEERBREFBOT

Percentage of the Group’s total

IEXEEEET L
Sales Purchases
SHEHS HisE
The largest customer BAEF 33.62% —
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFP L5 85.09% —
The largest supplier =AHEER — 91.40%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate K E R B ET — 96.15%

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owe more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers
and suppliers disclosed above.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Xian (Chairman)

Mr. LAU Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSIM Sze Hon

Mr. XIONG Jianrui (appointed on 31 December 2008)

Non-executive Director

Ms. XIA Dan (re-designated as non-executive Directors on
31 December 2008)
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon (retired on 28 November 2008)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik

Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael

Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond (appointed on 31 December 2008)
Mr. NG Kwok Chu Winfield (retired on 28 November 2008)

The directors’ biographical information are set out on pages 18 to
25 of this Annual Report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each
executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so
as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently. There is no
relationship among the members of the Board of Directors.

In accordance with Articles 87(1), Mr. CHEN Xian and Ms. XIA
Dan will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

In accordance with Article 86(3), Mr. XIONG Jianrui, Mr. CHOI Kai
Ming, Raymond who were appointed after the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 November 2008 shall hold
office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be
eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
on pages 18 and 25 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed. Each of the executive
Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board of Directors as its absolute
discretion having regard to the operation result of the Company.

No Director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director of the Company had a significant beneficial interest,
either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year ended 30
June 2009.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik, Mr. POON Lai
Yin, Michael and Mr. CHOI Kai Ming, Raymond, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and
the highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

Details of the events after the balance sheet date are set out in
the section “EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS” above and
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policies of the Company are set out in
the section “EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES”
above.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Part XV of the
SFO) (1) which are required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (2)
which are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (3) which are
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

FABESERERGHERRRE

RZEZNFANAZTH ARAIZEEHETE
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%&%fmm%%W%ﬁﬁW§£ﬁm% & KA
B HQBREBE LM AN ESETESFRINIZE
SPA(MZEST 8 ) M BB MARQ 7 KA 2 #
w KRBT

Number of
Number of Shares held  options held
FRSERRRIE
iR RnEE Eof =] Approximate
Personal Corporate Personal percentage of
Name of Director Interest Interest Interest Total shareholding
EENa PN 52 TG PN 52 “y  HREBOEHI
Ms. XIA Dan (note) XIA Danzz & (#17%) — 79,500,000 — 79,500,000 18.52
Mr. LAU Sai Chung Rt B s 148,000 — - 148,000 0.03
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMAHON 2 PR A A
(retired on 28 November 2008) (R—ZTZTN\F
+—A=+N8
BAE) 500,000 — 1,000,000 1,500,000 0.35
Note: Ms. Xia Dan (“Ms. Xia”) is taken to be interested in 79,500,000 P& : Xia DanZ & ([ XiaZZ & |) # % /& # £ Mega Edge

shares held by Mega Edge International Limited which is 100%
owned by Ms. Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia is deemed to
have interest of the Shares held by Mega Edge International
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, none of the
Directors, chief executive of the Company nor their associates
had any interest or short position in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which
were recorded in the register required to be kept under 352 of the
SFO or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 30 June 2009, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) has interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial

FERRWERDR

shareholder required to be kept by the Company under section

BT XX T EIN
EVEEXZAEMEMAL (RARBEFTHEIR
THRABHBEEFE BN RALI) RARB RN
HEEBODPHEEREIARMBREESZLYPE
R FEXVEFE2 M3 B AR 1B 78 5 M B | 15 0] 55336
Rz B EBRRMARAWE -

R=TEAFAA=TA &

336 of the SFO.
(i) Long position in ordinary shares (i) K 5] Z 8 AR
Percentage
Capacity and Number of shares of total
Substantial Shareholder nature of interest held issued shares
HE#TRIERTZ
=5 S5, e FRiF AR B E L EO= 0174
Mega Edge International Limited (note) Registered Shareholder 79,500,000 18.52%
Mega Edge International Limited (/:#) AR R
Mr. Chak Joaguim Emilio Kin Man Registered Shareholder 96,824,000 22.56%

Chak Joaquim Emilio Kin Mant 4

Note:

FEMARR

Mega Edge International Limited, which is 100% owned by

Ms. Xia Dan, non-executive Director of the Company. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Xia is deemed to have interest of
Shares held by Mega Edge International Limited.

(i) Long position in underlying shares

(i)

MisE : AR FZIEHITE EXia Dan - B Mega
Edge International Limited # 55 100% & 5 12
- RIEFHFRBAEKG - Xak T #
1% A% 55 Mega Edge International Limited 2

BRI -

R AR R < B

Approximate
percentage of total

Capacity and Number of issued ordinary
Name nature of interest underlying shares shares
HERTRBEEZ
&% 513 HERSE PRl 8 E BaE3EE
Weina (BVI) Limited (“Weina”) (note 7 & 2) Beneficial owner 460,000,000 107.18%
Weina (BVI) Limited ( 281 ) (Hfzt1&2) EmERE
Weina Group Limited (“Weina Group”) (note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation 460,000,000 107.18%
EHEBERAR ( [KBER] ) (H:i73) R AR s
Mr. Tsim Wing Kong (“Mr. Tsim”) (note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation 460,000,000 107.18%

EEYeEE (['EERE]) (M#3)

FEHIARZ i

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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Notes:

The Company has entered into a subscription and option
agreement on 26 May 2006 with Weina and through such
agreement and the exercise of the option by the Company,
Weina is interested in 350,000,000 convertible redeemable
preference shares and has the right to convert the
aforesaid shares into 350,000,000 ordinary shares (based
on its initial conversion price). The Company and Weina
has on 2 June 2009 entered into a supplemental agreement
to agree to extend the conversion period for a further 12
months from the expiry date of the conversion period such
that Weina shall have the right to convert the convertible
redeemable preference shares held by it at any time from
the date of issue to 15 June 2010 and 7 June 2011 (the
dates being 10 business days before the fourth anniversary
of the date of initial issue of the 250,000,000 and the
100,000,000 convertible redeemable preference shares.

The Company has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement on 17 November 2006 with Weina Holdings
Limited and through such agreement, Weina (as designated
by Weina Holdings Limited) is interested in 110,000,000
convertible redeemable preference A Shares and has the
right to convert the aforesaid shares into 110,000,000
ordinary shares (based on its initial conversion price).

Weina Group owns entire issued capital of Weina and is
therefore deemed to have interests in the underlying shares
of the Company in which Weina is interested. Mr. Tsim is
deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the
Company by virtue of his controlling interest in Weina
Group. Mr. Tsim is the father of Mr. Tsim Sze Hon, the
Director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered interest

in the

share capital of the Company that was required to be

disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO

and the Listing Rules.

Save for the shareholders as disclosed herein, the Directors

more

are not aware of any persons, who, as at 30 June 2009,
were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or

of the voting power at the general meeting of the

Company and were also, a practicable matter, able to direct

or influence the management of the Company.
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¥ % /350,000,000 @ & AR 0 o AN A &)
WeinaR ZEZNFRAZB (TR )IEE
HAmZE REAERBgEER s BER
TZEA - BHBREBERE  WenaB R B
KR EREERETZARE T —
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme was adopted on 20 January 2003
(“Scheme”). The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive
and to recognise the contribution of the eligible participants,
including directors and employees of the Group, to the growth of
the Group and to provide flexibility to the Group in terms of
remunerating the participants.

Particulars of the movement of the options held by each of the
Directors, the employees of the Company in aggregate granted
under the Scheme during the six months period ended 30 June
2009, were as follows:

R i #E 5T &

ARARMHN —_TZE=F-A_+HBBZER
BatE (58l ) - st BlEERAER2EE (8
RAKEEERER ) RERINALARERALE
ENERAENEBTUAEE  BAEEERE
SEEFHREAEML-

BE-TTAFAAS+ALAEARN BER
AR BIEL FAAAEERES 2 BREED
EERIIMT :

Number of share options
g 0]
Exercise Granted Exercised  Lapsed
price per Heldat during the during the during Held at
Category of participants Date of grant  Exercise period share 1 July 2008 year year theyear 30 June 2009
Sk R-FEAE REER REER REER RIFTAE
FEA Rt EH T8 fi#E tRA—-B#%F B fif# EX¥ ~A=+BRF
HK$
B
Directors retired during the period
RERBEZESE
Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon (Note) 6.7.2007 6.7.2007-5.7.2008 1.14 1,500,000 — — 1,500,000 -
BIEBELE (HF) 31.1.2008 31.1.2008-30.1.2011 0.74 1,500,000 — 500,000 - 1,000,000
Employees 6.7.2007 6.7.2007-5.7.2008 1.14 1,048,000 — — 1,048,000 -
EE
Total 4,048,000 - 500,000 2,548,000 1,000,000
At

a7

Note: Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon, who was a non-executive director
of the Company, retired on 28 November 2008 and did not offer
himself for re-election as director but continued to be employed by
the Company as an external consultant for the Group. The share
options granted to Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon on 31 January
2008 have therefore not been cancelled.

On 6 July 2007, the Company granted 11,228,000 share options
(all at subscription price of HK$1.14 per share) to Directors and
selected employees of the Company and its affiliates. These share
options were lapsed on 6 July 2008.

et : ZERBELE SREARFZBIFNTES
RZZEENF+—A=Z+N\BRELEELHEE
BEIRESENELASE ZER - XHB
EERZENF-A=+—BRE2ERE
ARG

RZEBEZLFEANH AQFB&®T11,228,000
BRE(BRITEEAE1148 L) TAR G MEH
BRARIZESERAERZEL - WEREERZ
EENFLANBELRK -

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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In addition, on 31 January 2008, the Company granted 1,500,000
share options to Mr. Gerard Joseph McMahon at a subscription
price of HK$0.74.

The total number of outstanding share options under the Scheme
as at 30 June 2009 was 1,000,000.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” above,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

No Director or the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company has
complied throughout the year ended 30 June 2009 with the Code
of Best Practice (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, save as the deviations disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report as set out in pages 26 to 34.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009

A R_EENF—A=+—8 ' AQAEX
1,500,000 iz #E T B T E ER1ITEESR
0.74% 7T »

R-IZEENFENA=Z+H FHFE THRERT
{55 B8 I 4 & F£1,000,000 °

BEATRGMHER

B b XX [T 8 | e F%%&ﬁﬂ(i@%@%%ﬁﬁ n
HEARDEESTZRERAR ISHMPESE
9|\’ZK/AETEJ?E{HEJW%’AEJIJZETET"JH%WJE
ARARNFREMNEHEBESLEIT I EMZH &
EEFARATRARIWESBZ2HEAL (O
ERAERETRAEETMEMNR E%Zliﬂﬁ&
HEMBAEE (E&LE %&Hﬂiﬂbﬁﬁﬂ)z
SHEBEARRFSTAEMEIAEE 2RO LE
75 1 BUF 25

ESHAGPEERCER

REARBEABREZBEH RELHHRA X
AAEFHEREERRLEBFEEANBEAL (E
ERETRADBEREREEXRBERLHER
FHAREBRFZIEGPHEEES

EERESR

ARREERR BENFHEMAZLEENR
BEFRBEZRBTRZIN RRANBE_Z
ZEAFARNA=ZTRHIEFED B LR A&
Tz &RERASA (TR -



Report of Directors
EEQWE

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge or its Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in the
Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group. The
audit committee currently comprises Mr. POON Lai Yin, Michael
(Chairman), Mr. CHONG Yiu Chik and Mr. CHOI Kai Ming,
Raymond. The audit committee has reviewed and discussed with
the management and the external auditors financial reporting
matters including the annual results for the year ended 30 June
2009.

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton was auditors of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2007 and resigned as auditors of the Company on 12
August 2008.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”) was appointed as
auditors of the Company on 8 September 2008 and the
consolidated financial statements for the two years ended 30
June 2008 and 2009 was audited by SHINEWING. A resolution
for the re-appointment of SHINEWING as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

CHEN Xian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 October 2009
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre

faikPAa

Shine‘ZOan

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE QUAYPOINT CORPORATION LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of The Quaypoint Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 47 to 143, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the limitation in
the scope of our work as explained below, we conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

However, because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Fundamental uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
RMB18,547,000 for the year ended 30 June 2009 and had a
consolidated net current liabilities of approximately
RMB182,293,000 as at 30 June 2009, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which is dependent on the positive cash flows expected
to be generated from the Group’s future operations, successful
outcome of the Group’s current negotiations with its bank
creditors and obtain new working capital in order for the Group to
meet its financial obligation as they fall due and to finance its
future working capital and financial requirements.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from a failure to obtain such
support and working capital. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made. However, the uncertainty
surrounding the outcome of these negotiations raises significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

Fundamental uncertainties relating to the going
concern basis (Continued)

Should the Group be not able to continue its business as a going
concern, adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts and to
provide for further liabilities which may arise. The consolidated
financial statements have not incorporated any of these
adjustments.

Disclaimer of opinion: disclaimer on view given
by the consolidated financial statements

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ip Yu Chak

Practising Certificate Number: P04798

Hong Kong
27 October 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR e W m R

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2009 2008
—EFTNE —ETNFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 3 ARETT AREF T
Turnover 2 10 287,780 152,826
Cost of sales & AR (274,808) (129,115)
Gross profit EH 12,972 23,711
Other operating income Hip & EW A 10 8,267 977
Selling and distribution costs & koK (471) (4,096)
Administrative expenses THEA (15,101) (32,563)
Bad debts directly written off HEFHZIER = (4,871)
Change in fair value of KEMELARE
investment properties k) 19 (8,240) 10,467
Impairment loss recognised FEZRBERSE
in respect of inventories - (2,124)
Impairment loss recognised ZSREKERZ
in respect of trade receivables LEE B 23 (413) (21,588)
Provision for claims RIERE 28 = (60,700)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary M B M E QA
and associates 2 EE 33 = (9,349)
Finance costs B & B A 12 (15,561) (12,219)
Loss before taxation KRFHaiEsiE (18,547) (112,355)
Income tax expense NRES ) 13 - (267)
Loss for the year FEEE 14 (18,547) (112,622
Attributable to: B 2%
Equity holders of the Company NN E R RR (18,547) (112,622)
Minority interests D ERR R = —
(18,547) (112,622)
Loss per share BREE
RMBAR% RMBA R
Basic BN 15 4.33 centsflll 26.41 centsfll
Diluted iy 15 N/AFRER N/ATR i FB

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER



Consolidated Balance Sheet

2 AR S =
mEEERER
At 30 June 2009
R-FEAFAA=TA

2009 2008
BT AE —EENEFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARETT AREF T
Non-current assets EFRHEE
Property, plant and equipment M MR N ERE 18 19,858 19,270
Investment properties B 19 167,765 175,768
Prepaid lease payments HEENNFIE 20 17,675 17,986
Interests in associates Y AN Dl X 21 = -
Available-for-sale investments HBEEHEEKRE 22 - —
205,298 213,024
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5K HE AR 23 14,887 38,854
Prepaid lease payments EEE 20 397 391
Held-to-maturity investments BAEZREHAKE 24 - —
Financial assets at fair value BEEEN R
through profit or loss AREVBEE 25 565 420
Bank balances and cash RITRREET 26
— pledged — B2 12,584 12,289
— unpledged — R 13,289 14,422
41,722 66,376
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMERR 27 55,837 57,512
Provision for claims RERE 28 60,700 65,941
Bank borrowings — repayable BITER —R—FR
within one year BE 29 107,478 112,552
224,015 236,005
Net current liabilities RHBEBEFE (182,293) (169,629
23,005 43,395

50 The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009



Consolidated Balance Sheet

AR EEREXR

At 30 June 2009
R-ZZEZAFRA=TH

2009 2008
—ETLE —EENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARSBTT ARBTF T
Capital and reserves ARG E
Ordinary share capital L IR AR AR 30 44,031 43,087
Convertible redeemable Al #E 4% A] fE [0
preference shares 18 55 iR A% A< 31 184,653 184,653
Reserves = (216,958) (197,805)
Equity attributable to equity holders RRRERBRE
of the Company (GRS 11,726 30,835
Minority interests DERER - -
Total equity HnEeE 11,726 30,835
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITER — —F1&
F 8 29 11,279 12,560
23,005 43,395

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 October 2009 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chen Xian

Mr. Lau Sai Chung
2t B e A

Chief Executive Officer

7T AR #L

FATENRBAZHEAMBRENR_ZFZEALF T A
“tEREEEEHEREENE XA TIE
ERREE:

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER

51



52

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

2 AL HEE L £24
FMeEnEER

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RATRBHAAEE
Convertible
Ordinary redeemable Share Exchange
share Share  preference Capital options tr General A d Minority
capital premium shares  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
HER
TiER THEE [ {334 INERE
BF RERE BERRE EXHE fE RERE —REE RithsiE a8 L34 @
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
N AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR% AR%
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr i
(Note (@) (Note (b))
(Ft () (Ft (o))
At 1 July 2007 R-ZEZ+FELF—R 37,100 7,160 184,653 13,841 - (1,546) 5,309 (129,398) 117,119 - 117,119
Exchange difference arising on translation 1A & g SN E K RFH =
of financial statements of foreign ZHBBREMEEN
operations and net expenses directly ERZSE
recognised in equity - - - - - (3,368) - - (3,368) - (3,368)
Reserve realised upon disposal of G 1IN
a subsidliary and associates BRlink - - - - - (67) - - (67) - (67)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (112,600 (112,622) - (11262
Total recognised expenses for the year REECRIARTEE - - - - - 67) - (112,622) (112,689 — (112,689
Recognition of equity-settled share based ¥ : bA i i 4 & 2 i {3 7/ =0
payments (Note 34) [ (K #34) - - - - 2,913 - - - 2,913 - 2,913
Issue of shares BIRH
— upon placement of shares - FRERH 6,127 12,254 - - - - - - 18,381 - 18,381
— exercise of share options — T ERE 760 9,721 - - (1,819 - - - 8,662 - 8,662
— transaction costs attributable to the - RERDZRIHE
issue of shares - (183) - - - - - - (183) - (183)
At 30 June 2008 RZZENFRA=+H 43,987 28,952 184,653 13,841 1,094 (4,981) 5,309 (242,020) 30,835 - 30,835
Exchange difference arising on translation A& BN ER R IEH % 2
of financial statements of foreign BRBRRAEED
operations and net expenses directly ERZE
recognised in equity - - - - - (886) - - (886) - (886)
Loss for the year and total recognised KEEBEERAFECHR
expenses for the year X @8 - - - - - - - (18,547)  (18,547) - (18547)
Transfer to reserve for value of share KMz BRERE
options lapsed BEEE - - - - (550) - - 550 - - -
Issue of shares upon exercise of share TEBRENRE
options 2k 44 462 - - (182) - - - 324 - 324
At 30 June 2009 RZZTAFAA=+H 44,031 29,414 184,653 13,841 362 (5,867) 5,309 (260,017) 11,726 - 11,726
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

HE—

Notes:

@)

ZENFRA=THILFE

The capital reserve represents the effect of the reorganisation of
the Group through which the Company become the holding
company of all group companies comprising the Group and
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans by a subsidiary.

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), two PRC subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of
the after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to a general
reserve fund until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of its
registered capital and thereafter any further appropriation is
optional. The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior
year losses, or for conversion into registered capital on the
condition that the general reserve fund shall be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the registered capital after such utilisation.

GEE

EARBERAEEREMA (KARRAMMKAE
KAKBEZRBEEBERRZERRR) R —H
MEBARZABERERERMCMELEZZE -

BAREARAME ((HRE])ERRE WEBERA
MEBLARERERUE RN (KEHEBEFEZ
R R BEEI0%IIA—RE#E BEERHBES
HFEME AR 250% - fH &2 BFRBATHE S/ -

—REBESITAFEEBEFREZEBR EE
AMEA EFEFELZSERER —REFS
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SFERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
By 3E ARETR ARBFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Loss before taxation % %t Al E5 18 (18,547) (112,355)
Adjustments for: HEIEE :
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments THERIB 2 #H 397 109
Bad debts directly written off EREHEIER = 4,871
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair BBBRARBRANE
value through profit or loss BMBEEE (143) 765
Change in fair value of investment properties KREWERN f@ {E -1 8,240 (10,467)
Depreciation of property, plant and M MBEREEZ
equipment nE 2,021 1,355
Finance costs BhE B AR 15,561 12,219
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ZHRMETZ
trade receivables B E B 413 21,588
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEmpEUWREZR 2
other receivables REBE 84 1,108
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEZREER
inventories = 2,124
Interest income SN ON (242) 671)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary and B R
associates AR ZER 33 - 9,349
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEWME HWRELEREZ
and equipment BB (m) 405 (56)
Reversal of bad debts directly written off EEFHERER (2,520) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FEREBEEE
in respect of inventories (1,193) —
Reversal of impairment loss recognised HEi UM ERER 2 RE
in respect of other receivables EiEEE (442) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B S5 EBERER 2
in respect of trade receivables (B B 1B E (1,767) -
Provision for claims REEE - 60,700
Share-based payment LA B 5 1+ 3% - 2,913
Written off of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEZ
T = 130
Waiver of trade and other payables ERGEEEZEIR
H &~ BR 3X (897) -
Operating cash flows before movements HELBESEHH Y
in working capital EERERE 1,370 (6,318)
Decrease in inventories 7(? 15 & D 1,193 799
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 K& H b e B8R 5K
other receivables DR ( ) 26,787 (6,313)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMENERIRD (14,347) (5,201)
Decrease in provision for claims REBRERD (5,241) (5,200)
Cash generated from (used in) operations "EEHZRESR/A () 9,762 (22,233)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBBTEH = @
PRC Enterprise Income Tax refunded PEARAMBEMSE
PRETERR - 355
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REFHZIBREREN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (i) BEE 9,762 (21,880

54 The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
/\\/ N E/% STZ ;ﬁ: E 2%

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2009 2008
—EEAE —TENFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
By &E ARETR ARBFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment REWE WELEE (3,129) (1,139)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRG] (234) (190)
Interest received B U A 242 671
Proceeds from sales of property, HEWE KB REME
plant and equipment FrigshiE 137 80
Purchase of investment properties RNEREWE - (23,756)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale HEBHEERE
investments - 4,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EE2HeH$HE (2,984) (20,330)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BLEEE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEER (20,171) (44,843)
Interest paid BRFIA (2,099) (2,088)
New bank borrowings raised e ,%k 14,131 33,751
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares TR EIT 324 27,043
Payment of share issue expenses BhET2ER = (183)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEEHZRE (FH)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BHE (7,815) 13,680
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRBF&£%EEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS BLFE (1,037) (28,530)
EFFECT ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ExggzieE
CHANGES 59 (2,655)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZBEEREE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEHER 14,267 45,452
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RELXZBEREE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR %HEH 13,289 14,267
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH HeRBRe2EEEBZ
EQUIVALENTS, represented by, gaath R
Bank balances and cash RERBITET 26 13,289 14,422
Bank overdraft RITEX 29 = (155)
13,289 14,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

1.

GENERAL

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempt company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” section to the Annual Report.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) established in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). The functional currency of the subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is
Renminbi (“RMB”). For the presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group adopted RMB as its
presentation currency.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
Note 40.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at 30 June 2009, the Group reported net current
liabilities of approximately RMB182,293,000. The condition
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore that it may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liability in the normal
course of business. Nevertheless, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due for the next twelve months from 30
June 2009 given that:

(i) the directors of the Company anticipates that the
Group will generate positive cash flows from its future
operations;

(ii) as set out in Note 29, the Group is still in negotiations
with respective banks concerning a restructuring of
the guarantee provision of RMB60,700,000 and a
short-term bank borrowing of RMB74,734,000. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
negotiations will be concluded successfully and full
repayment in the short to medium-term will not be
required; and

(i)  if necessary, in order to meet the Group’s funding
requirements the directors of the Company will
consider to raise funds by way of issuing additional
equity and/or debt securities.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. Should the
Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

R-ZZEZAFANAZ+TH AEEZFEFRD
BEL A AR EE182,293,0007T ° 5% Ak it 2% #F
BEERTHAERZTETHAEBUIGE
MR EGEE R ENER B mA
EELEREEERBTHEELSEKBER
FZET - ARREZTHURAEAEE
BERAEEEACRTEREEA (A
TRFENAZTHBEFREKRTZ@EA A
H) T

) ARREFHEAAREGHRKNE
ERELEEMRERE

(i) ORI FE20f T - AEEIRFE A BHIRIT
#t A R #60,700,0007T 2 ER B B E A
N4 NR¥ET4,734,0007T 2 EHAR 1T &
RETEE ARAEZTREBRHAB
EmER TREHEFHRNEBE
EEEN R

iy WFE ARAEFTZEBRLTH
INERER,REBEHFUNEMGAEER

BEgHmK-

At ARREFHRB/EAMBRREA
ENFEREEERE - MAEETRNUR
BREERBELZX BLERRAMBR
RPZEEBEIHEETHREE RAEKE
EZEREMBEREARESAARRBEE
HEEEM O BARBEELAE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ER R R

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

3. APPLICATIONOFNEWANDREVISED 3. FER#H REIE:IERMBRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HH ([HEMEREER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following REE AEECRMAUTELSSFMAE
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by ((BEgHmMmAg)EMCEEREER 2
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the BRI ANEZE ((FEAMBRELA ) -
“HKICPA”) which are or have become effective.
Hong Kong Accounting Reclassification of Financial Assets EReHEN(BReE SREENENHIE
Standard (‘HKAS”) 39 & Bl 1) 305 R A B K]
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) EEBIETHE (BFTR)
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation Embedded Derivatives FE (ARMBEHREREZE RITEER
(‘INT”) 9 and HKAS 39 g)-REEMREEE
(Amendments) S8 305 (BRI A)
HK(FRIC) — INT 12 Senvice Concession Arrangements H7% (B Wﬂ PHERERBZE RBETELH
) — REE12%
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes G VX BHERERBEE BHERFHE
g) - REBE1R
HK(FRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined 55 (BRUBRERREE BAQHENE9R -
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding g) - %E aamﬁ AEFRBELR
Requirements and their Interaction B REESEXR

HEHEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on
how the results and financial position for the current or prior
accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(FRIC) — INT 15

HK(FRIC) — INT 16
HK(FRIC) — INT 17

HK(FRIC) — INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008'
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009?

Presentation of Financial Statements®

Borrowing Cost®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items*

First-time Adoption of HKFRS*

First-time Adoption of HKFRS®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®
Business Combinations*

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments®

Operating Segments®

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate?®

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation®

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners*

Transfers of Assets from Customers’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

B=E

3.

SEEAFAASTALER

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009, 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008.

7 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on

or after 1 July 2009.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition dates are on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at the
date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

4. EXTFBUR &)

(a)
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(©

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associates,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
held for use in the production or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimate residual value, using the straight-line
method.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered
as operating lease payment. Land use rights are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, amortisation is
charged to consolidated income statement over the
period of the rights using the straight-line method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the four categories, including financial assets of fair
value through profit and loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, pledged and unpledged bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management
has positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
The Group designated investments in a trust fund as
held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale securities (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified as other financial
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables, provision for claims and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its
fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible redeemable preference shares

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the
Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on preference share capital
classified as equity are recognised as distributions
within equity.

Preference share capital is classified as a liability if it
is redeemable on a specific date or at the option of
the share holders, or if dividend payments are not
discretionary. The liability is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policy for interest-bearing
borrowings and accordingly dividends thereon are
recognised on an accruals basis in the consolidated
income statement as part of finance costs.

For convertible preference shares which have a
cumulative, non-discretionary fixed dividend payable
to the holders, the fair value of the obligation to
distribute the dividend is recognised as liability.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and recognise a collateralised
borrowing for proceeds received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are
discounted to present value where the effect is
material.

Impairment losses

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

0)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of sale return and discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods were delivered to customers and the
title has passed.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset
(excluding financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date,
and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of
equity (the exchange translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
scheme and defined contribution schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged

to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the
allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases, except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

Although the Group has net current liabilities at the balance
sheet date, the Group manages its liquidity risk by
monitoring its current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly and ensuring sufficient liquid cash to meet the
Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
The directors of the Company consider that the Group has
no significant liquidity risk.

Legal title of buildings

As detailed in Notes 18 and 19, respectively, certain of the
Group’s buildings have not been granted legal title from the
relevant government authorities to the Group. Although, the
Group has not obtained the relevant legal title, the directors
of the Company having regard to the legal opinion have
recognised the buildings on the grounds that they expect
the legal title to be obtained in the near future with no major
difficulties and the Group is in substance controlling these
buildings.

Bt FET RTEGT A EE M
BRIE =)

Vi

~

FE B S5t UK < BA 52 3 R

AT RS AE - BT ALy EmEE (R
TX) REARAEFCEEEBERESHN
FERMEFBE RAMMBHRRPERYL
HEREEZFENTR -

FEEREER

HAXEBECEHEEARTEERDAGE £F
FEMEBAMMBERNRBDESHHK L
RERANER RS RS AERERPNK
REkmeEBEERNEANRBDEST
Ko ARAEZRR/RAEBLEEN RS T
[\ B o

BEYBE LB E

BANE R M FE18F19  EENELEELRE
MEBRNERESEEMAE - ALK
B R ESHEENELMAERE  BAQF
EELEXREREAREBEENMNA LR
EEBRTANER EREEARNHBTE
B FIAAEEEE FRIEHELESE-

KBEEERLA —TTNFFR

79



80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Zﬁ

W N

AN

2 W R I At

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually
the residual value and the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed in
the future period.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as
determined by the review of their current credit information.
The Group continuously monitors collections and payments
from its customers and maintains a provision for estimated
credit losses based upon its historical experience. Credit
losses have historically been within the Group’s
expectations and the Group will continue to monitor the
collections from customers and maintain an appropriate
level of estimated credit losses. In addition, the Group will
provide general provision based on the aging analysis of the
trade receivables.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

The policy for recognition of impairment loss of other
receivables of the Group is determined by the management
based on the evaluation of collectability and management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each receivables.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates such as the future revenue and
discount rates. No impairment was provided for both years.

Provision for claims and alleged guarantees

During the current and prior years, the Group had been
involved in certain litigations and claims in respect of
overdue bank borrowings and certain alleged corporate
guarantees given by the Group (Notes 29 and 37). The
directors of the Company determine the provision for claims
and guarantees based on their best estimates according to
their understanding of legal advice. Where the final outcome
of the claim and negotiation with the respective bank
creditors is different from the estimation made by the
directors of the Company, such difference will impact the
provision for claims in the year in which such determination
is finalised.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB57,539,000 (2008: RMB56,279,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. In cases where
there are future profits generated to utilise the tax losses, a
material deferred tax asset may arise, which would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year in which such profits are recorded.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. EXEmEE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the AEEEAER T EEEAREETELE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BEREREEE YEBETE=TEHELER
maximising the return to shareholders through optimisation R BREERZKER-
of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which REEEABZBEBREEDR (BERK 329
includes bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 29, pledged WEZIRITER R EZEEB L
and unpledged bank balances and cash as disclosed in BEACRITERERS) RARAIZER
Note 26 and equity attributable to equity holders of the BEAEAN(BEERAFEEERK) ARRZE
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. ETHRFTERERE - fER R 231D
The directors of the Company review the capital structure KRB ZEETEEERZKAKRIEEER -
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors of WIREVBE TEAFAEREE 2 EARERE -
the Company consider the cost of capital and the HIE—ZZNEFRZEZNGFAA=THA
associated risks, and take appropriate actions to adjust the AMEFEE AEBZEARAESEHEHERZRT
Group’s capital structure. The overall strategy of the Group 5 o
remained unchanged during the two years ended 30 June
2009 and 2008.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. UBITR
Categories of financial instruments BT B A
2009 2008
—ETAE ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBF T
Financial assets HBEEE
Financial assets at fair value BB BT A R
through profit or loss NAhBEYHEE 565 420
Loans and receivables (including BEEREWKFE (B
cash and cash equivalents) BeskIleEE
IHE) 40,708 57,908
41,273 58,328
Financial liabilities MBEaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost SRR BAR 235,294 248,565
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, pledged and unpledged bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, provision for claims and bank
borrowings are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several
subsidiaries of the Company in currencies other than those
subsidiaries’ functional currencies. In addition, certain
portion of the trade and other receivables, pledged and
unpledged bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency to which they
relate.

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

8.

HEEREEBR R RBUR

AEEBZIEcRIABRTEES REMBER
KRB BEERSUARRATFEZHBEE
EEMLRERRRTERLAS BHRHE
MENKRIE REBRBERRITEE - 28T
AZHRRESHBEMNERE AT R
TAZEAREBEEDSER (BEER - F =X
Rk EMERER) EERRBRERBE
TRR -EEEGEEXFRBRAE  BR
B A B E EEE R

B ER

AEEAEZRSEERBREERARAZ
MOWBAR CHEXBE SR RZFN
BRRAGHNEEEAMTRAMSIE - 5
S B RIE 5 K H Y R - EHE A R E
ERRTESRERE EZREMENFR
RRITEEAGREN B QR 2 &K AN
MEBEH -

TRETTEEREEACHABERER
MEHEEE NI ERMELNER R

LA
i

0 o
2

As at As at

30 June 2009 30 June 2008

REZFBEAE R_ZZNF

~A=+H NAZTH

US$’000 US$'000

E 3o b EeTT

Assets BE 2,558 3,781
Liabilities B&E 885 1,795

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cContinued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A negative number below indicates an
increase in loss where RMB strengthen 5% against the
relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss, and the balances below would be
positive. The analysis is preformed on the same basis for
2008.

BMERGEERERBEK &)

EX R b )
BB E AT
AEBETEEYETHEERR -

TRFIE R AR L ARRMINS BE R
1B5% 2 BUJE - HRE D ITIE BB AINER
BZHATFREREE ARNFRFEEL
BIARBRINEE [E R 25% 2 E) - T 5| &R R
ARBEHEBEBHRARKE T E%ME
HzBRRD - MARBLEBEELEA
RERZES HEHFEBEREKRBEFR
BRzZE RTIEHRBSELHBREH -2
MHER-ZETNFR-—ERET -

2009 2008

—ETAE ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBF T

Impact on loss for the year FRYBREZTE (571) (646)

Interest rate risk A 2= = B

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to REBZRESTANE H f = EEd a] & F K 4R

variable-rate bank deposits and variable-rate borrowings TERRAEFNRES (% —Er f;iat BEFBRW

(see Note 29 for details of these borrowings). It is the F29) B o KEE Zﬁﬁlﬁﬁ{% BEE E/;? £
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of FME - mMEBE2REEAFEFNERRE -

interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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8.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cContinued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note.

As of 30 June 2009, it is estimated that a general 50 basis
point increase or decrease in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would increase or decrease the
Group’s loss for the year and accumulated losses by
approximately RMB157,000 (2008: RMB165,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents directors’ assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the
next annual balance sheet date. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for year ended 30 June 2008.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities. The Group’s exposure
to other price risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2009 and 2008, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to the failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009

8.

BMERGEERERBEK &)

=R b (2)

AEERMBEEEYE 2 F @RS M T
mBETREREEFNE -

RZZEZAFANA=Z+H HstFESEFH
Sk TRESOREBMATEEMEHTE  &F
REEAFEEEREFEEBEN RAH
AR BI57T000 (Z EZENF: AR K
165,0007T ) °

BB DT B FIE R BN EH A%
ATEE EEARKAFEZSRIAY
Rk BB AR - ME0RH FA L TRARE
FHRETEFEAE A BMALAR T8
882 SN NER-2S)\EARY
ERET -

HAibE& AR

AEBRTA LHRAZES M@ HBRAER
R o NEEE L 2 BEEREN -

EE Rk

R-ZBZAFR-_ZFETNFAA=Z+TB &
SERFTOTRERTEEEMRCD ERR
BEERHZEREERAR REAREER
BRRARAEERBRAAZEFTEE 2K
E1E °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%

nv.

*ﬂ/\

% Rk I R

For the year ended 30 June 2009

BnE
8.

SEINERASTRLEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cContinued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other debtor at the end of the reporting
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC including Hong Kong. As at
30 June 2009, the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk by any single trade debtor, with exposure
spreading over a number of counterparties and customers.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group has certain concentration of
credit risk as 20% of the total trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer.

The credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 30 June 2009
as its financial assets due within one year was less than its
financial liabilities due within one year. The Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB183,293,000 as at
30 June 2009.

The Group has planned to implement several measures to
improve its working capital position and net financial
position. Details of which are set out in Note 2.

8.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. WMEEMETEBERKE &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESERM &)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TEHFIEANEEGHABZATAELHIHEIA -
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non- BIETEM B EEMS  ZXIBEBEARE
derivatives financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up AR BN EFEHRBH K EGE 2 KL
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities RBeREEH ZERBEMNERTERS
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be RE o
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
Liquidiity risk tables TEHELEREK
Within More than 1 More than 2 Total
1yearor yearbutless years butless More than  undiscounted Carrying
ondemand than2years than5years 5years cash flow amounts
—E£Ry BA-F£B8 EBAWEE REHZ
Bk MER HER HRAE BEER ARE B
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR AR%ETx AR%TRT ARETR
At 30 June 2009 R-ZBELE
~A=+H
Non-derivative financial JE£74 B8 & f&
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 Jx £ f JE W 28 55,837 - - - 55,837 55,837
Provision for claims RIEEE 60,700 - - - 60,700 60,700
Bank borrowings BITER 115,414 1,858 5,574 8,516 131,362 118,757
231,951 1,858 5,574 8,516 247,899 235,294
Within More than 1 More than 2 Total
1 year or year butless  years but less Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
on demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years cash flow amounts
—ERyg  BBE-FE  BAMEE RUHRZ
EPIS MER 1ER BRLF BRER EHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
At 30 June 2008 R-ZFENE
~A=+H
Non-derivative financial JE£74 B8 & f&
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 £ ft FE W 78 57,512 - - - 57,512 57,512
Provision for claims RERE 65,941 — - — 65,941 65,941
Bank borrowings RITER 121,584 1,879 5,636 10,490 139,589 125,112
245,037 1,879 5,636 10,490 263,042 248,565
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

o.

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivate instruments) with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively;

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivate instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instrument;

the fair value of non-optional derivative instrument is
calculated using quoted prices or where quoted
prices are not available, the fair value is estimated
using discounted cash flow analysis and the
applicable curve for the duration of the instruments.
For option based derivative, the fair value is estimated
using option pricing model (for example, the Binomial
model); and

the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated
using quoted prices.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

The directors of the Company also consider that the
carrying amount of the long-term portion of liability
approximate to their fair value as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_TThFAA=THLFE

10. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 10. B % iE R HMWEE KA

INCOME
Turnover represents the net amounts received and CEBELETFIARFPFERERBEZE R
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside REKFSEREAFTEEZRERITN -
customers, less returns and discounts and sales related
taxes.
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as AREBEBNZEBOTWT :
follows:
2009 2008
—EBEBAE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBETF T
Turnover EER
Sales of automation products and HEBBILERNET
electronic components T REHZBA 273,880 102,289
Sales of natural resources HERAER WA = 39,588
Gross rental income from investment wEMEZHS WA
properties (Note a) EFN (Bfita) 13,900 10,949
287,780 152,826
Other operating income Hh @A
Change in fair value on financial assets BRBZIRBAAE
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEC AT EEE 143 —
Exchange gain, net FIE N8 s 891 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and ME - BE &
equipment BB E W - 56
Interest income FE WA 242 671
Reversal of bad debts directly written off EREEMERE D 2,520 —
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FREFEZRERBRE
in respect of inventories (Note b) BE (K ib) 1,193 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised EHEMEYRIE
in respect of other receivables BB EE R 442 —
Reversal of impairment loss recognised fFHEBESEKFEZ
in respect of trade receivables BEEEEE 1,767 —
Waiver of trade and other payables ZES5REMEMNREBEZ
N 897 —
Sundry income MIEUA 172 250
8,267 Q77
Total revenues FERL N 296,047 153,803
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_TThFAA=THLFE

10. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING

10. 2EXBERHMBZBEKAN @)

INCOME (Continued)
Notes: B 7
(@  Ananalysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (a) AEENKREMEZHESRADHTNOT :
2009 2008
—TEAE —ZEZNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFIT
Gross rental income from investment REMEZHSWAEF
properties 13,900 10,949
Less: Outgoings (included in cost of sales) J& : S 1 (BIFHEEKAN) (2,300) (1,821)
Net rental income from investment "EMEZBSFBRA
11,600 9,128

properties

During the year, certain impaired inventories were sold at a
gross profit. As a result of the impairment of inventories of
approximately RMB1,193,000 (2008: Nil) has been
recognised and included in the consolidated income

statement for the year ended 30 June 2009.

RER  BETEREZFEERENEEH -
SERGFEZRELHARE1,193,000T (ZF
EN\F EBEERTREREAHEZE-Z
TNFRNAZ+TBAZHEAREERRN -

CHEBERAR —TTENFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into three operating divisions — technology,
trading and property investment. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Technology —  Provision of technical and
consultancy services including
the provision of automation
products on a project basis.

Trading — Trading of natural resources,
automation products and
electronic components.

Property — Rental income arising from
investment investment properties situated
in the PRC and in Hong Kong.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. DEEE =)

=JVAN
e

(@

Primary reporting format — business @ FEZHERX —XBH1E

segments

For the year ended 30 June

BENA=FHIFFE

Technology Trading Property investment Consolidated
BE g5 MERE o3y

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

—BTAE —ZT)\F ZBEAE —TIT)\F ZETAE —ITT)\F ZBTAE —ITIT)\F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AREFTRE ARETT ARETRE ARETT AREFTRT ARETR

Turnover LR - — 273,880 141,877 13,900 10,949 287,780 152,826

Segment results DEEE 2,520 (14,847 (2,387) (81,275) 3,854 19,006 3,087 (77,116)

Interest income B A 242 671
Unallocated income and AARBAR

expenses 53 (7,215) (23,691)

Finance costs BITE RN (15,561) (12,219)

Loss before taxation BRI EE (18,547) (112,355)

Income tax expense MERES - (267)

Loss for the year EEBA (18,547) (112,622
As at 30 June RANA=+H

Segment assets PEEE - 8,000 30,663 41,948 189,396 197,156 220,059 247,104

Unallocated corporate assets ~ KA LEE 26,961 32,296

Total assets MEE 247,020 279,400

Segment liabilties AEAE - - 13,155 16,081 3,282 3,748 16,387 19,829

Unallocated corporate liabllities % A B £ & & 218,907 228,736

Total liabilities BafE 235,294 248,565

KBEEERLA —TTNFFR
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idated Financial Statements

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 11. DEEE =)

(@ Primary reporting format — business @ FE2HEX-XBKHE @)

segments (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June

Technology
B
2009 2008
“EEAE —TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR

BENA=FHIFFE

Trading Property investment Unallocated Consolidated
g5 MERE APE e
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

SEEAE -TT)\5 C¥BAE -TT/5F SEWAE -TT)\F CREAE T4
RMB’000 RMB'000 =~ RMB’000 RMB'000 = RMB’000 RMB'000 = RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETr ARBTRE ARETT ARBTR ARET1 ARETR ARET:

Other segment information: £ 4t 7 8 & #}
Amortisation of prepaid BRI & & 5H

lease payments = -
Bad debts directly ZRERME

written off = 4,847
Capital expenditure BRRY = =
Change infairvalug of ~ REMEHAT

investment properties EEEE = -
Change infairvalug of 18 1B 18 2 A R Bk

financial assets at fair ARENE

value through profit or BEZRF

loss BEg = -
Depreciation of property,  #1% - 42K

plant and equipment RENE = -
Loss (gain) on disposal of i E M E - 2

property, plant and Lz

equipment B (k) = -
Impairment loss recognised & 5 fE Yt 8 5~

in respect of trade REN 3

receivables = 10,000
Impairment loss recognised £ 4 fE Yt 8 3 7

in respect of other REN 3

receivables - -

Impairment loss recognised 77 & 2 i & 5 18
in respect of inventories - —

Loss on disposal of HEHBR A&

a subsidiary BERNFZ

and associates BE = -
Provision for claims RERE = -
Reversal of bad debts EREEME

directly written off [l (2,520) -

Reversal of impairment loss 77 & 2 i {E & 2

recognised in respect of [l

inventories - -
Reversal of impairment loss & 5 e E 2 7

recognised in respect of 3B 1B

trade receivables el = -
Reversal of impairment loss £ 41 fE B 2 7

recognised in respect of 3B 1B

other receivables #E = -
Wavier of trade and other & 5 [ & fth fE
payables BHZBE = -

Written off of property, ME BER
plant and equipment F R = -

6 6 391 103 - - 397 109

- 24 - - - - - 4,871

- 739 2616 23,756 513 396 3,129 24,891

- - 8240 (10,467) - - 8240 (10,467)

- - - - (143) 765 (143) 765
1,680 1,110 - - 341 245 2,021 1355
405 (56) - - - - 405 (56)
413 11,588 - - - - 413 21,688
84 1,103 - - - 5 84 1,108
- 2,124 - - - - - 2,124

- - - - - 9,349 - 9,349

- - - - - 60,700 - 60,700

- - - - - - (2,520) -
(1,193) - - - - - (1,193) -
(1,767) - - - - - (1,767) -
(442) - - - - - (442) -
(897) - - - = - (897) -
- - - - - 130 - 130
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

HE—

11.

12.

ZENFRA=ZTHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. HEEE =)

(b) Secondary reporting format — (b)
Geographical segments

For the two years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008,
over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are
derived from customers and operations based in the
PRC including Hong Kong and accordingly, no further

RBEZHEN — wED A

BHE_ZTNFR-_ZFTNFARA
STRALEMEFE aRAEEES
NREEFPRLEEZWaNEEN
URPE(BEEFE) RLEZ2IAK

analysis of the Group’s geographical segments is EFE D BER -
disclosed.
FINANCE COSTS 12. R A
2009 2008
—BEAE ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARET T
Interest expenses on: B
— bank overdraft — RITEX 3 9
— trust receipt loan — ERRBEBEER 145 —
— bank borrowings wholly repayable — ERAFAZEEER
within 5 years ZIRITER 15,065 12,023
— bank borrowings not wholly repayable — TERAEFAZEE
within 5 years BZRITIER 348 187
15,561 12,219

KBEEERLA —TTNFFR
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

BnE
13.

SEINERASTRLEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. Fi@HRAX
2009 2008
—BTAE ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T

PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEDEMBER

— Current tax — B - 267
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BAEMNESHEBEZE_ZEZNFR_ZZTNF

estimated assessable profit for the two years ended 30
June 2009 and 2008.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has
sufficient tax losses brought forward to offset against the
assessable profits for the two years ended 30 June 2009
and 2008.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order
No. 63 issued by the Tenth National People’s Congress. On
6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law
and Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate for
the current period. The New Law provided a five-year
transition period from 1 January 2008 for those subsidiaries
which were established before the promulgation date of the
New Law and which are entitled to a preferential lower tax
rate under the effective tax laws or regulations and hence
the 25% tax rate will only be applicable to certain
subsidiaries after the expiry of tax holidays and
€concessions.

The Group’s subsidiaries enjoyed a reduced tax rate of
15% in 2007, the transitional tax rates are 18%, 20%, 22%,
24% and 25% in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and
onwards, respectively.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
RE-TTAFAA=HALEE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before taxation per the consolidated income
statement as follows:

13. FIR#HE= @)

AEERERAXANAER/EE RERP
HBR TR BT B 1R -

AEET

2009 2008
—EBEAE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT
Loss before taxation B % Al 5 18 (18,547) (112,3595)
Tax calculated at rates applicable to profits EREMABRER 2B
in the respective tax jurisdiction concerned FAET 15 B B R gk Br
MA@ M E 2
Fi18 (3,495) (23,809)
Tax effect of expense not deductible AR 2 B8
for tax purposes -1 4,869 25,100
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes FEEF U A Z 18
- (153) (2,410)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible temporary K {2 Fi 1 B 7k # 32
differences not recognised ATEMEE 2 HE
TE 789 2,062
Utilisation of temporary differences previously not & F3 B B R #&E R
recognised ERMHER (1,866) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised {3 f A Hi sk 78 32
AT B A B 1B (144) (676)
Income tax expense HIER X = 267

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 32.

IR FE IR A RO RS2
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_TThFAA=THLFE

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

14. EEEE

2009 2008
—ETAE ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Loss for the year has been arrived at FEBECMEBR GEA)
after charging (crediting): AT&IE:
Staff cost (including directors’ emoluments): B IR A (BEEEME ):
Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind He IENMEMER 4,696 13,864
Share-based payment BB Sz H = 2,918
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROKEMET & 2 3k 132 261
4,828 17,038
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments EES# Y 397 109
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT B & 735 702
Change in fair value of financial assets AABENURMBARE
at fair value through profit or loss MEEEZEE (143) 765
Cost of inventories FERK AR 274,808 129,115
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥% - R R EEZITE 2,021 1,355
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other E fih & Y 318 2 SR B &5 18
receivables 84 1,108
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss SIS 0% (e ) B 1R (891) 369
Operating lease rentals of premises HEMEZRERD = 1,083
Operating lease rentals of equipment R EEHD 15 15
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE HMRELRKREZ
equipment & 18 405 -
Written off of property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 - #4288 & 35 {8 2 i BF
(Note) (K17%) - 130
Note: The amount represented the write off of property, plant and Mz SBERRBZE-TETENFAA=1+AHLE

equipment for the year ended 30 June 2008 (2009: Nil) due
to the relocation of the Group’s head office.
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BnE
15.

16.

SEFAFAASTALER

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended
30 June 2009 is based on the consolidated loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company of approximately
RMB18,547,000 (2008: consolidated loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately
RMB112,622,000) and the weighted average number of
428,731,000 shares (2008: 426,494,590 shares) in issue
during the year.

No diluted loss per share is presented for the year ended
30 June 2009 and 2008 as the effect of the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and convertible
redeemable preference shares was anti-dilutive.

15. SR8

ﬁﬁ—%%ﬁﬁmﬂ:wﬂmz&%m%
BREMCHEDRZBEARARE=EE A
%Eﬁéfﬂé # AN R#518,547,000T (— 2T
NE AR FREFEAREENHARE
112,622,0007T ) & 28 68 A B & 17 f% {79 10 # F
5 28428,731,0000% (ZZZF )\ F : 426,494,590
REE

BE_TTNEFR-_ZTTN\FRA=1+AHL
FREARBRITEZBRE LA EH%AERE
BRABRHEBREAERARBEZE A
WRAIN LR EEE -

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING 16. EIRAE (FBEESEME)
DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS)

2009 2008
—EEAE —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind Fe TERHEMER 2,189 10,526
Share-based payment VAR 9 X - - 1,052
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKE T B 5R 106 246
2,295 11,824
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

BE-_ZZNEFRA=THILFE

16. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING 16. EI A (A BIEEEME ) @)

DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong
employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group companies (the
“employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employee’s earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions from each of
the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,000 per month.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the two
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to a state-
sponsored retirement plan for all its employees at a certain
percentage of the basic salaries of its employees. The
state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under
the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_ZTTNAFANA=ZTHLEE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S
EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten

(2008: eleven) directors were as follow:

For the year ended 30 June 2009

17. EEREEME

@ EEME

RS ER T EE(CREN\F
+— )2 BE T

HE-FEAFAA=FALFEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other Share-based benefits scheme
Fees  benefits in kind payment contributions Total
ET R 1] VA B% 3 RE#HR
EH REMEF %t &R stElZ R M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARE®TRT ARETRT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chen Xian E32Eie - 458 - - 458
Mr. Lau Sai Chung Bt A - 573 - 11 584
Mr. Tsim Sze Hon e ke - 229 - 1 240
Mr. Xiong Jianrui (appointed on BRI 4L (R ETN\F

31 December 2008) T-A=+—HEZMT) - 385 - 4 389
Ms. Xia Dan (re-designated as ~ XIADanZ + (R=ZZE )\ 4

non-executive director on +-A=+—BHALAE

31 December 2008) EHITESE) - 124 - - 124
Non-executive director EHITESE
Mr. Gerard J. McMahon (retired  ZEBE@ %4 (R N\F

on 28 November 2008) +—BA=+N\BREMF) 167 - - - 167
Ms. Xia Dan (re-designated as ~ XIADanZ + (R =T ZE )\ 4

non-executive director on +-A=+—H#HAFAE

31 December 2008) FHITESE) 106 = — — 106
Independent non-executive BIAERTESE

directors
Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield SERELE (R-BENE

(retired on 28 November +—A=+N\BEfF)

2008) 67 — - - 67
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael ERBELLE 159 - - - 159
Mr. Chong Yin Chik HRELE 159 - - - 159
Mr. Choi Kai Ming, Raymond EERALE (R-ZZEENE

(appointed on +ZA=+—BEZME)

31 December 2008) 80 - - - 80

738 1,769 - 26 2,533
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W N
For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_TThFAAA=THLFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@

17. EERESEME »)

EEME =)
F_FT N EANA=FHIEE

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other Share-based benefits scheme
Fees benefits in kind payment contributions Total
e ZHR LARR 19 REHEK
ZH H {15 7 YHER sz R HmE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBEFTT ARBEFTT ARBETT ARBTRT
Executive directors BITESE
Ms. Chan Siu Chu, Debby (retired EEHZ+ (R-_ZEZ+ 4
on 30 November 2007) +—A=+THEE) - 952 368 5 1,325
Mr. Siek Fui (retired on BB (RB)AE (RZTTtF
30 November 2007) +—A=1+8EFE) — 549 36 — 585
Dr. Sze Kwan (resigned on SEEL (R_ZTLF
1 September 2007) NA—BRE) - 46 36 — 82
Mr. Tsim Sze Hon (appointed on ~ E & #E4 (RS T+ 4
1 December 2007) +=-A—HZ%E) - 126 368 5 499
Mr. Lau Sai Chung (retired as A REE (RZTTLF
independent non-executive +—RA=1+BEREABIH
director and re-designated as HITESRATANTESE)
executive director on
30 November 2007) — 319 36 5 360
Mr. Chen Xian (appointed on MELE (RZZETLF
12 October 2007) +A+=ZBZEME) — 320 — — 320
Ms. Xia Dan (appointed on XiaDanZ t (RZZET+F
21 August 2007 as non- NAZ+—H iff)*—?z
executive director and FRTEERNR_TTLF
re-designed as executive TAT=ZBACANTES)
director on 12 October 2007) — 191 - - 191
Non-executive director EHRITES
Mr. Gerard J. McMahon ZEER ) 5 A 316 87 945 - 1,348
Ms. Xia Dan (appointed on XiaDanZ £ (RZFT+F
21 August 2007 as non- NAZ+—HZAEA
executive director and FRTEERN TS LHF
re-designed as executive TA+-_HATANTES)
director on 12 October 2007) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BAKTES
directors
Mr. Lau Sai Chung (retired on 30 2t %54 (R=ZT T F
November 2007) +—A=1+8BEE) 60 - - - 60
Mr. Ng Kwok Chu, Winfield REELEE 158 - 36 - 194
Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael EEERE 158 — 36 — 194
Mr. Chong Yiu Chik (appointed ~ HBE L4 (M- N\4F
on 1 March 2008) =A—HZE) 56 - - — 56
748 2,590 1,861 15 5,214
No directors waived or agreed to waive any R-ZFZFNFR-_FFENFNA=+

emoluments during the two years ended 30 June
2009 and 2008.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, four
(2008: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out in the above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2008: two) highest
paid individuals were as follows:

17. EERESEME #)

b) SREEEME
hEREHFMENALA Of (ZF
ZENF ZR)REF RFZHMD

REBEINE -Etg— R (ZFTZT)N\F:
M) AR AL 2 @RI T

2009 2008
“ETAE —TETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Salaries, allowances and He IER

other benefits in kind H A iE 584 830
Share-based payment VAR 5 3% f+F = 439

Retirement benefits schemes ROR A& FET 8] 50
contributions 11 7
595 1,276

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

TE&EeFMENATH Z2HMER
FIUTHBENA

No. of individuals

EI&AH
2009 2008
“EThE —EENF
Nil to RMB883,400 (equivalent to T = AR #883,4007T (B
HK$1,000,000) 7 7 #1,000,0007T) 1 2

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the two years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

© BEZTZEAFM_ZTZNFA
“tRLIMEFER Eu&s#HE
EF (BREFNER)EXXNME(F
ARSI MAEIIMARNEER 2 53K
TERBERAE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
BE-TEAFAASHALFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. W13 - MBI RRIE

Leasehold Motor
Buildings  improvements  Equipment  Furniture vehicles Total
#2¥F HERE R 3} RE ]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARB®TR ARBTT ARBTR
CcosT 5.3
At 1 July 2007 R-ZFEE+FtHA—H 13,411 1,574 3,582 856 1,628 20,951
Exchange realignment X =5 (65) 7) (20) (19) (33) (144)
Additions NE 379 398 46 - 312 1,135
Transferred from investment 8 BREME (Hf#19)
properties (Note 19) 2,866 — — - — 2,866
Disposals & - - - - (38) (38)
Written off B - (193) - (44) - (237)
At 1 July 2008 RZZZENEt+A—H 16,591 1,772 3,608 793 1,769 24,533
Exchange realignment BHERE 14 2 3 1 2 22
Additions NE - 3,129 - - - 3,129
Disposals HE - - (695) (622) (1,006) (2,323)
At 30 June 2009 R-ZFELE
~HA=+H 16,605 4,903 2,916 172 765 25,361
ACCUMULATED Rt E
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July 2007 “ZZ+F+A—H 447 108 2,197 336 995 4,083
Exchange realignment [ HES (1) ¥ (10) 27) (14) (54)
Provided for the year KEEBE 321 84 551 209 190 1,355
Eliminated on disposal HE B 8 - - - - (14) (14)
Eliminated on written off e — (88) — (19 — (107)
At 1 July 2008 RZZEZENE+A—H 767 102 2,738 499 1,167 5,263
Provided for the year KEEBE 363 969 439 147 103 2,021
Eliminated on disposal HE R - - (338) (533) (910) (1,781)
At 30 June 2009 R-BENE
~A=+H 1,130 1,071 2,839 113 350 5,503
CARRYING VALUES IREZE
At 30 June 2009 R-ZBEMLE
~A=+H 15,475 3,832 77 59 415 19,858
At 30 June 2008 “EINE
~NA=ZTH 15,824 1,670 870 294 612 19,270
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

HE—

ZENFRA=THILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

@)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

18. % - BB RERE o)

@ WELNRME HERKXERERBEZMG
A AERBEEMGABRE LE

estimated useful lives less their residual values as BEMBEEXRAE MENFRFTE
follows: mR
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the BgF 2% 3k = 8 #) 5 B
lease or 2% 8 FSE -
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of the THEMEREE 20%IEHNFH
improvements  leases or 20% (AREERBE)
Equipment 18% to 25% B 18% £25%
Furniture 18% to 25% RE 18% £25%
Motor vehicles ~ 18% to 30% aE 18% £30%
The carrying value of buildings shown above () NEEZEYZEMERRE:
comprises:
2009 2008
—EThE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREETIT
Medium-term lease held in: EAHREENOR
— Hong Kong — &% 2,745 2,787
— the PRC — pE AR HAE 12,730 13,037
15,475 15,824

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

©

As of the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not obtained the
building ownership certificates of certain buildings in
the PRC as these buildings were under seizured as a
result of certain litigations against a subsidiary of the
Group in relation to certain alleged guarantees and
overdue bank borrowings. Such litigations were
concluded and the Group is in the process of
negotiations for the restructuring of the guarantee
provisions and a short-term bank loan with the
respective banks. Details of which are set out in Note
29.

Accordingly, the application of obtaining the building
ownership certificates of these buildings was
deferred. A legal opinion provided by the Company’s
PRC legal advisors on 18 September 2009 confirmed
that although the subsidiary has not yet obtained the
building ownership certificates of the relevant
buildings, the ownership of the relevant buildings
vested with the subsidiary.

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18. % - BB RERE o)

© BEUKAMBHRERZER KAKHE
DARORBEARAETWEZFER R
BHRRER UREVESAAEH
ZHBARZEBHEBMWERIRITE
XEEMEET -FRGEREAEH
B EEARTHERBEEMEHRIRT
&8 2 EHEMAMFBE T ENHE
29 °

B ETABZEEZRDEMRES
AEBNBEREZBER _ZTNF
NATNBREHENEZEZERER %
REWBRARIDABRSETAEZE
EE EBEWBARNE FHEBEE
MR -

190. R EME

2009 2008
—EBTLE ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREETF T
FAIR VALUE AREE

At 1 July ntA—H 175,768 166,693
Exchange realignment b 3, 5 £ 237 (4,075)
Additions NE - 23,756

Transfer to property, plant and EEYE KB REE (WiF18)
equipment (Note 18) - (2,866)
Transfer to prepaid lease payments EEHEBEN NI - (18,207)
Change in fair value “rBEEZ (8,240) 10,467
At 30 June MRARA=+8 167,765 175,768
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

@

19. IREME =)

The carrying value of investment properties shown @@ HEWEZE@EWOT:
above companies:
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARETFTT
Medium-term leases held in: BFEPHBHR :
— Hong Kong — BB 40,765 44,468
— the PRC — pEARKME 127,000 131,300
167,765 175,768

All of the Group’s investment properties are held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes and are measured using the
fair value model.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong and the PRC as at 30 June 2009 were
valued by Norton Appraisals Limited and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, respectively, both are
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. Both valuers have
appropriate qualifications and have recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuations have been
arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions.

For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group
changed certain of its investment properties as office
premises for the Group. The relevant portion relating
to these investment properties have been transferred
and included in prepaid leases payments and
property, plant and equipment from the date of
change in use.

$%Fﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ%§%%)}ﬂ«%fﬂf‘l’h
BERBE S KARERERERR
YARAREEAFE

AEBREBRTENKREDED
EEE THERFEARAARERR
TERRAR (HRBIRAEXMGERM)
? mGEENGER-_FTTNAEFRA

StHEHMAAE - mWEMGEREGE
ENER URAFGERBULIEZ
AENENER HFES2RBRER—
WEMGEHE ZBUNRZTEX 5B
RH) & -

RZEZENFARA=ZTHEHLEFE &K
’ﬁlﬂﬁzﬁ,\ S TREMERREEZ
FE - BHEBIHEELEREMER
%EZLS%' BRERANEERABZENE
EERYE BB RE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

(€

As of the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has not obtained the
building ownership certificates of certain investment
properties in the PRC as these investment properties
were under seizured as a result of certain litigations
against a subsidiary of the Group in relation to certain
alleged guarantees and overdue bank borrowings.
Such litigations were concluded and the Group is in
the process of negotiations for the restructuring of
the guarantee provisions and a short-term bank loan
with the respective banks. Details of which are set
out in Note 29.

Accordingly, the application of obtaining the building
ownership certificates of these investment properties
was deferred. A legal opinion provided by the
Company’s PRC legal advisors on 18 September
2009 confirmed that although the subsidiary has not
yet obtained the building ownership certificates of the
relevant investment properties, the ownership of the
relevant investment properties vested with the
subsidiary.

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

19. IREME =)

e HEUGAMBBRRZER AEHE
DABRGEANETRENEZFEE
REFLDER UEREVESEALE
B2 M B R B AR AR R RRTT
BREEMEERR -FRBEREAE
5] B 5 R A SR 1T EY B AR B R AN HEER
TTHRE ZEHEMAMFE TSR E
29 °

Bl ETHREMEZFERDEMR
B AEENERNERBERAR _-F
ZERNFAATNBRENERZE R
ROBEAEMBRARADARBETK
BZFEEZE BENBRRDETHE
MEENHARE-

20. fHEFERIE

2009 2008
—ETThE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
The Group’s prepaid lease payments 7 £ [ 7 + b {5 F3 #E 70 & 78+t
on land use rights comprise: I
Medium-term leases held in: BEERHELSR
— Hong Kong —BE 17,811 18,110
— the PRC — 261 267
18,072 18,377
Analysed for reporting purposes as: PMBENBERE
Current assets mEEE 397 391
Non-current assets ERBEE 17,675 17,986
18,072 18,377
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

1. REtEAT 2=

2009 2008
= L A s
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Share of net assets LB EFE
Amount due from an associate R NETE /|

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, non-
interest bearing and were fully settled during the year ended
30 June 2008.

As set out in Note 33, as at 30 June 2008, the Company
disposed of its entire interests in associates through
disposal of a subsidiary.

Details of the associates as at the date of disposal on 30
June 2008 is as follows:

YL ARRBABEBER T ERER
—TEENFARAZTHIEFERHEBEE -

RZZEENFESAZ+H ARAEBHE
MEARMELEME R M E#ER &7
5B 5E33 o

BE-_TZ)\FNA=ZtBHEZHLE QT
FBWT

Country of Proportion of
Particulars of incorporation/ ownership interest
Name of associate issued shares operations indirectly held Principal activity
AT EL
BHEATEH EBTRE ARSI, B B BAEDEHE TEEH
Orient Metro Limited 50,000 ordinary shares BVI 25%  Investment holding
of US$1 each
Orient Metro Limited 50,0000 & i % REBEBARES 26% HREEZEMR
(REERLDA) BR1ZET
PT Orient Utama 2,521,800 ordinary shares Indonesia 25%  Provision of mining
of US$1 each technical services
PT Orient Utama 2,521,800/ % i fi% ElZferas 25% B MHEREE BT AR
f12E 7T
Now Gain Limited 1 ordinary share BVI 25%  Provision of export
of US$1 each services
Now Gain Limited 1R FmARIE T HEBHERRES 25% iRULH O RS

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continves) 21, B E AT 2 H#EZE (#)

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect BE-_ZEEN\EA=tRLEERER 2B
of the Group’s associates up to the date of disposal on 30 ERNBIZAEZYHERBE

June 2008 is set out below:

2008

—EENF

RMB’000

AREETF T

Total assets EEE 36,213
Total liabilities waE (49,927
Net liabilities FaE (13,714)
Group’s share of net liabilities of an associate EEEMBE R ZFAE -
Revenues A —
Loss for the year REEBIE (12,138)

Group’s share of results of associates for the year

SEEEBE QAR ZFRA —
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

22, ofHHERSE

INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise: BHREEESFNOT
2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR F T
Unlisted equity securities, at cost JELETREREFS  IEKA 51,338 51,338
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERBERSE (51,338) (51,338)

The available-for-sale investments are measured at
cost less impairment at each balance sheet date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so wide that the directors are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Available-for-sale investments amounting to
approximately RMB51,338,000 (2008:
RMB51,338,000) represents the Group’s 18.52%
unlisted equity interest in the registered capital of
Goldwiz Huarui (Tongling) Electronic Material
Company Limited* (BHEZIn(HRAE)EF MR AR R
Al), a company incorporated in the PRC, the
operation of which has been suspended since
December 2005 due to critical liquidity problem.
Accordingly, the investment cost had been fully
impaired in prior years.

* The English names are for identification purpose only.

AfHENREZFETZEABA
AR ERE BERAATBENEER
FEENZERA MEEMAZER
RRERFEEBEATESE -

AHHENKERBENAEARE
51,338,000t (ZEENF: AR
51,338,0007C ) B G R AP B 3E =T
AE FEER GRE)ETH R ER
NAEHEME KR 21852% © & KA S
E4HBER _ZEZTRAF+-_AFE
TEXBIE-EENRERED 2K
REBRIAEFE -

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

e
23.

SEEAFAASTALER

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. & 5 & H 1th FE g BR =X

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
Trade receivables B o EIRER 26,120 45,727
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERBEREE (14,707) (21,588)
11,413 24,139
Prepayments, deposits and AN B R H M EUER K
other receivables 4,164 15,823
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERBEEE (690) (1,108)
14,887 38,854

Customers are normally required to settle the debts within
one to two months upon issue of invoices, except for
certain well established customers where the terms are
extended to two to three months.

(@ An aged analysis of trade receivables, net of

EPWAIRER  —

—=M1EAFE

B BRTETERYRFBEEZEPAL

REME=EA -

@ EBIZEKRERK

Ko 48 F0 B B 52 RL 15 /85 1R

impairment loss recognised is as follow: ZIEREOTET
2009 2008
—BThE —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
0-60 days 0-60K 419 7,939
61-90 days 61-90K - -
91-365 days 91-365X - 7,200
QOver 365 days B 1B365K 10,994 9,000
11,413 24,139
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

@

(Continued)

As at 30 June 2008, included in the balance aged
over 365 days was an amount overdue from a debtor
of RMB18,000,000. On 20 June 2008, a PRC
subsidiary of the Group entered into a settlement
agreement with the debtor. Pursuant to the
settlement agreement, the overdue amount would be
fully settled on or before 20 October 2008. Up to the
date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2008, a total
of RMB8,000,000 was received. The unpaid balance
of RMB10,000,000 was fully provided for the year
ended 30 June 2008 due to the expiry of the
respective terms stated in the settlement agreement.

The movements in impairment losses of trade
receivables are as follows:

23. B R HMEWIRER =)

@ (&)

HE-_ZZN\FAAZ+H EHEA
8/} 2 BB & A R #18,000,0007T * B
FEBIB3OR R - R ZTEZENE R
AZ+H AEBZFBRKE QR H
B A RIS — T8 MR 1 5% o 1R IR A0 R
M HERZREZSE -_ZENFT+ A
—tHEZA 2 EE - HEEHLES
ECZEENEXNAZTHLEEEZE
AU BHRERE R - HUA R ¥8,000,000
7T o A R #10,000,0007C Z & {f t4 5E &
HEABBNERE L2 BEGER-

B RYSRRZBMEBREZS T

2009 2008

—BThE —ETENE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETF T

At 1 July RntH—H 21,588 —

Exchange realignment [ 5 40 —
Written off during the year F R (5,567)

Recognised during the year FRER 413 21,588

Reversal during the year F R (1,767) -

At 30 June MANA=+8 14,707 21,588

At 30 June 2009, included in the impairment loss are
individually impaired trade receivables in the Group
with an aggregate balance of approximately
RMB14,707,000 (2008: RMB21,588,000) which are
due to long outstanding. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

RZEBEEZNFERNA=Z+TH A&EEZ
BORWER (BREBEBE)BEY
B AR #14,707,0000C (Z 2 T )\ F
A R #21,588,0007T) ' % B 5 E W Bk
RO RHARBE HZ&EH AKEL
ERAE TR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

B 75 R % B 7

23. B R HMEWIRER =)

(€ The movements in impairment losses of other ) EMEKERZRESBEZSNOT

receivables are as follow:

2009 2008

—EBENE ZTENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBTF T

At 1 July n+tA—H 1,108 —

Exchange realignment ME W A& (55) -

Written off during the year FANFEH (5) -

Recognised during the year FRER 84 1,108

Reversal of during the year FAYE (442) —

At 30 June RANA=+H 690 1,108

At 30 June 2009, included in the impairment loss are
individually impaired other receivables in the Group
with an aggregate balance of approximately
RMB690,000 (2008: RMB 1,108,000) which are due
to long outstanding. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

(d) At 30 June 2009 and 2008, the analysis of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired are

RZEZNFAAZ+H AEEZ
H h B IBR 3K (ﬁ%ﬂ@%%a)%@%ﬁiﬁ
A AR #690,000T (ZEZENF - }\E
#1,108,0007T ) * #% £ fth & U BR 30 D
HIRBE Y% ZK%II%%%%‘
R CIE I

RZBEZNFR_ZEZENFNAZT
A - EafEgEREEECESEK

as follows: BRI AT
Past due but not impaired
ERHEREESE
Neither past
due but nor Less than More than
Total impaired 60 days 61-90 days 91-365 days 365 days
FiEH A
st EREEE DiB6OR 61-90K 91-365K  Zif365K
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT ARBTRT AREFT ARBTRT ARETR
30June 2009 WM=-FBFAE
~A=+H 11,413 419 - - - 10,994
30 June 2008 RZEZENF
~A=+H 24,139 7,939 — — 7,200 9,000
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

)

(Continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables in are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate:

23. B R HMEWIRER =)

d (#&)

ABRABERHEEEREZE S EEER
HERZEFAR HECLA&KIOZIE
RIEESL °

ERMESRREBRZE S EKER
AEETERCBERHEZBITFE
B-REBEETEER TEERARRERE
BZEEEEUEEANE  BINHK
BRA 28I E - B A D E AR
B-HZ&EH AEBAERAEME
Hom e

e BRBEZREMEBUIRKET (ZFNU
HEEMBACEBHE DEBZINEE
B AL -

2009 2008

—EThE —EENEFE

’000 '000

Tt Tt

uUs$ ETT 1,612 2,215

Included in other receivables for the year ended 30
June 2008 was consideration receivable of
approximately RMB5,463,000 in relation to disposal
of a subsidiary, details of which has been set out in
Note 33. The amount was fully settled during the year
ended 30 June 2009.

H HMEE—RBHBRAIZEURENA
AR #5,463,000C (BIEZZTZN\F R
A=Z+THLEFEZEMBIER)FE
EHNMEAN ZRBEE_ZEZTN
FRAZTHERZHBE -

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

BE-TEASAASTALER
24. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investments comprise:

24. FAZHHBEKRSA

FRAEZIHBEREMT :

2009 2008

—EThE ZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREEF T

Trust fund investments EEESKE 150,704 150,704
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERRBEEE (150,704) (150,704)

Trust fund investments represent funds placed by two PRC
subsidiaries with Kinghing Trust & Investment Co., Ltd.* (&
EFEEREREZEBRAT) (the “Trust Company”), an
independent trust investment company in the PRC.
Pursuant to the relevant contracts, the funds were for a
fixed term up to May 2006 and the Group’s return on the
trust funds is limited to an annual rate of return of 4%.

In early 2006, the Company was informed that the Trust
Company had been ordered by the relevant authority to
suspend its operation. The assets of the Trust Company
are now being managed by the China Construction Bank.
The two PRC subsidiaries have registered with the China
Construction Bank its entitlement to the fund. Despite the
Group’s repeated attempts for confirmation of the
repayment schedule, neither the China Construction Bank
nor the local government has provided any information. In
view of the absence of information to substantiate the
recoverability of the trust fund, as at 30 June 2006, the
directors of the Company consider to recognise an
impairment loss of RMB150,704,000 on the trust fund
investments.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only.
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EREESRETMEREANEB QR NHE—
BMEREEEAIAREERRAA (EREA
ADZBIERRERAAERZES R
BEABAH RESRBETHRES AN
—EERFRAEM - AKEARNZESE
BHEBRS/STF4% -

R-TENREY] AR EBMZETRA
EREEKBHSELER EEENDH
FREERBRTEE ZMEBEANBRAE
MAEERBTELZES ZERE - B#R
AEBTHABNSHEESHRNERE
IR RESIPRERRBITRE HWRF
RESAEHN ARZEEN AT KB HFE
THBREEZ RZEENFAA=Z+H K
NRABEEERBERANZETESKRER
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

)ﬂlBiT”
mﬂfa

i
&
mo
B

i DA I

BiE LR R S {E B

AR EMBEEMNT

2009 2008
—ET]AE —EENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREEF T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong AR B E2E S EHE
at fair value FERS F = 565 420
The above financial assets are classified as held for trading. P BEESEABEEE ZUKEE
The fair values of these financial assets are based on ZRARBIHEREMERE -
quoted market prices.
26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. RITHEHFRBFAE
2009 2008
“EThE —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% ARETT AR T T
Pledged bank deposits A ZRITER
— Bank deposits — BITHER (a) 57 1,017
— Time deposits — THER (a) 12,527 11,272
12,584 12,289
Bank balance and cash RITHEGFRAS
— unpledged — (b) 13,289 14,422
25,873 26,711
Notes: B 5

The amounts represent short-term deposits with maturity of
three months or less and were pledged to banks for bank
facilities granted to the Group. The pledged deposits carried
interest rate ranging from 0.5% to 2.38% per annum (2008:
0.31% to 4.1% per annum).

(@ MTAIE?EE‘JHHEI?%ETHEEL‘/(TZ%E,HW?
CWHMRETAEEZRITERVE M H A TR

ﬁ EERES

K 1z BB T 2

R AR R R

0.5%E2.38%:t B (= & 2 PANE: SRR | I
0.31%%4.1%) °

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

27.

Notes: (Continued)

)

For the two years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008, bank
balances and cash and deposits with a maturity of less than
3 months carry interest at prevailing market rates. The
interest rate ranged from 0.01% to 0.72% per annum (2008:
0.01% to 0.72% per annum).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

26. SRITEERBRE »#)

o5

(b)

(%)

R-TBANFR-_FENFANA=THI
MEFE  BITEFRESRERIEEHA
AB-EARUTTIZRBAIERABRITHSF
KR FF RN F0.01%E0.72%:F & (= F
TNF  FHREO0O1%E0.72%) ©

© BOGFEKRBILKGERELIERELFE

and cash are the following amounts denominated in a IR EEEBEE NS ASBA Y A
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to TZE -

which they relate:

2009 2008

=t oY - 3 ZTENF

’000 ‘000

Fr Fr

us$ EP 946 1,566

Rupiah Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) e’ - 20,320

At 30 June 2009, the Group’s pledged bank deposits and ) RZZFEZENFAA=TH FTEBEZDHEA

bank balances and cash denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB5,942,000 (2008: RMB2,269,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

ZROTGEREBRTEFRREAAREE]
TE R/ ARS942,000T (ZEEN
F AR #2,269,0007T) © AR B KN
BEXTRIMNETRGIMITHREE - HE
FSE AN S R B AT R

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B 5 & H {h FE T BR X
2009 2008
—EThAE —EENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBEF T
Trade and bills payables BHRNERRENEE 7,589 18,016
Accrued interest FE - F) B 39,154 25,692
Accrued expenses and other payables & 1<t F sz & H fib FE 1~ BR 3¢ 9,094 13,804
55,837 57,512
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNhFANA=ZTHLEEE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows:

27. S R HMERRE &)

BIRNERRENRREZREDTNOT

2009 2008

—EThE ZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREETF T

0-60 days 0-60X 733 12,253
61-90 days 61-90K - 312
91-365 days 91-365K 280 —
Over 365 days B 1E365K 6,576 5,451
7,589 18,016

Included in trade and other payables are the following B MNHMENERTESORETIEUAREEF

amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

HEXEBZHEEE REMZIATRA

2009 2008

—EBThE —ETNF

’000 ’000

Tt Tt

Us$ ETT 300 1,795

As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s bill payables were secured
against the Group’s investment properties.

28. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS

R-ZBZENFRA=ZTBE AEEZENE
BURNEBZIEMRIERER -

28. RIEIEE

2009 2008
—BThE —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
At 1 July RntH—H 65,941 10,441
Additional provision during the year REFIEIN 2 BAE - 60,700
Settlement during the year KEBZHE (5,241) (5,200)
At 30 June RANA=+8 60,700 65,941

LHEEERLAE —TTNFER
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28. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS (continued)

@

As at 30 June 2008, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB5,241,000 (2009: Nil)
set aside in respect of alleged guarantees which are
said to be issued by a PRC subsidiary of the
Company. Under the preliminary settlement
agreement with the bank (the “Bank”), the Group has
agreed to settle the amount and to pledge its
leasehold buildings and investments properties in the
PRC as a security. The Group has settled
approximately RMB5,241,000 during the year ended
30 June 2009.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s remaining provision
for claims of approximately RMB60,700,000 (2008:
RMB60,700,000) was in respect of a claim made in
2008. In 2008, another branch office of the Bank
made a claim against a PRC subsidiary of the
Company under a corporate guarantee allegedly
provided by the subsidiary to the Bank in respect of a
third party. A judgment was made by the relevant
court on the litigation in favour of the Bank.

On 23 October 2007, the PRC subsidiary and the
Bank entered into a non-binding memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) under which both parties
agreed that the aggregate principal and interests of
the amount of approximately RMB60,700,000 would
be restructured into a term of not less than 1 year
and not more than 3 years against the pledge of the
Group’s leasehold buildings and investment
properties in the PRC (to be secured under the above
guarantee provisions of approximately
RMB60,700,000 and the bank loan of approximately
RMB74,700,000 as at 30 June 2009 (2008:
RMBB80,700,000) and certain amount of accrued
interest would be waived.

Although the formal execution of the security and final
settlement agreements for the guarantee provision of
approximately RMB60,700,000 have not yet been
finalised. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the Bank have not
demanded immediate repayment. The Group is still in
the process of negotiating with the Bank to finalise
the terms of the settlements and considers there is
no immediate liquidity difficulty.

The Quaypoint Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009

28. RIERE »)

(@

RZFEZNFRA=TH BEIE
NERR-—ZHANBARKLNG
AR 5241000 ER(ZZEZEN
FE) REBEERT(RTHDEEEN
N MEHE AEEREMHER -
TARFPEBERACHERZERREY
EERERY - AEECR_TTAN
FRAZTHALEFEXNOARE
5,241,0007T °

RZZEEANFNA=Z+H AEEZ
T R B BB 4 A R ¥60,700,0007T (=
T )N\F : AR¥60,700, oooﬁ) B =
EENFZRE -R_ZTZT)\ BRHK
NREEBELDERME —HEA
BITZHA ST REREAERRRIRE
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MR E F\_zvﬂi/\ﬂ +E|
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29. BANK BORROWINGS

TNFRR=ZTHLEEFE

29. RITER

2009 2008
—EBEhE —EENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E ARETR AR T
Bank overdraft RITEX (@) — 155
Bank loans, secured BEREITER (d) 40,009 44,223
Overdue bank loan, unsecured BEEKIEZIRTER (b &(©) 74,734 80,734
Trust receipt loan EEWIBEE R 4,014 —
118,757 125,112
2009 2008
—8EnE —TI)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBF T
Carrying amounts repayable: FER FRERE(E
On demand or within one year R—FE7RAHIRERKER 107,478 112,552
More than one year but not BR—FE_FR
exceeding two years 1,368 1,316
More than two years but not HMBZFERFA
more than five years 4,315 4,170
More than five years BiBRE 5,596 7,074
118,757 125,112
Less: Amounts due within one W —FEZ2AREREILR
year shown under mEEaE
current liabilities (107,478) (112,552)
Amounts due after one year —F 1% 5 =1 11,279 12,560

(@

At 30 June 2009, the Group’s bank overdraft carried
interest rates ranging from 7% to 8% per annum
(2008: ranging from 5.25% to 7% per annum).

@ MR-ZZETZAFAA=Z+H AEEZ
BRITBELXFEMNNENTIREIR(ZEE
NFE  FFIENFE525%E7%) ©

LHEEERAE —TTNFER
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29. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

()

The unsecured bank loan was borrowed from the
Bank by a PRC subsidiary of the Company which
was overdue as at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009.
The interest rate of this unsecured bank loan has
been increased to 9.558% (2008: 9.558%) per
annum as an overdue penalty imposed by the Bank.
In December 2006, the Shenzhen Arbitration
Committee made a decision in favour of the Bank
which has however subsequently agreed not to
enforce its right to demand immediate repayment
from the Group in order to allow the bank to
restructure the outstanding debt into a loan secured
against the Group’s leasehold buildings and
investment properties in the PRC with carrying value
as at 30 June 2009 of approximately
RMB12,730,000 and RMB127,000,000 respectively
(2008: RMB13,037,000 and RMB131,300,000
respectively). Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, the restructure of
debt and the formal execution of the security have
not yet been finalised.

The accrued interest as at 30 June 2009 of
approximately RMB39,154,000 (2008:
RMB25,692,000) was recorded under current
liabilities.

The secured bank loans carry interest at the prevailing
market interest rate. The effective interest rates of the
secured bank loans as at 30 June 2009 were ranging
from 1.95% to 3.1% per annum (2008: 2.75% to
5.91% per annum).

Included in bank borrowings are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

20, SRITE™R @)

(b)

(©

BER2RITEFRBEPRERTRID
TEHBERINDEBETARAz —HERA
WBAR BT LFNA=TH
FZZEZENFNA=ZTBERH-&
RARINE K EFEREFAZE9.558% (=T

%AEEM%MMWEﬁ R-ZEE
ANE+ZA RIFHEZESHES
8RR I B AR VE@E&EF@EMJMHMT

ERANEARTEETERALER
FrEERBZRER  AFFRRFISE
ZABNNERELAAE —HUBESP
MEEBHFNEREE_TTLEX
AZ+BZ2HERNAENAEARE
12,730,0007T & A & #127,000,0007T °
(ZZE2ZT N\ F: AR %13,037,000%
131,300,0007T ) - R A &R & B B3R & #t

EHH EEEEAREHFZEATE
R FERK °

R-ZEBEZAFERNA=ZTHEZFENE
# N R #39,154,0007C (Z T & )\ F :
AR #25,692,0007T) EFf AREBIBE

REBERFEREMHEERTE - &
BEERZBEBETHENF1.95%F
31%% (ZZZENF : FREN F2.75%
£591%) °

RITEE
eVl 2

TEBRYIFANKEIERM
EWRBEMZIATRA:

2009 2008
—ETAE —EENEF

000 '000

T T

HK$ & 31,839 36,812
Uss$ eV 585 —
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30. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each

30.

g S

BREBBIOTZEBER

Number of
shares Equivalent to
B8 BER
Notes 000 HK$’'000 RMB’000
h=a Th& BETFT AR®ETIT
Authorised: EERA
At 1 July 2007 R-_ZEEZ+F+H—H 1,000,000 100,000 106,000
Increase of share capital 120 f% A (a) 2,000,000 200,000 175,070
At 30 June 2008 and EA_? ?)\i/\ﬁ +H
30 June 2009 —EENF
7N )E] =+H 3,000,000 300,000 281,070
Issued and fully paid: BITREHRRA
At 1 July 2007 RZEZFELEF+EH—H 350,000 35,000 37,100
Issue of shares upon private AAREBITRMD
placing (b) 70,000 7,000 6,127
Issue of shares upon exercise of TEERERITRG
share options (©) 8,680 868 760
At 30 June 2008 RZZEZENFRA=TH 428,680 42,868 43,987
Issue of shares upon exercise of & 1715 BB IR #E 21T AR 1D
share options (d) 500 50 44
At 30 June 2009 RZEENFEASA=T+H 429,180 42,918 44,031
Notes: B 5
(@  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual @ RENR-_ZTLF+-A=1TRZERERF
general meeting on 30 November 2007, the authorised EEREmN —HEERE  ARNEINEM
share capital of the Company is increased from 2,000,000,000% i B 17 + AN A 7] 2 A TE B AR
HK$100,000,000 to HK$300,000,000 (equivalent to F3100,000,0007% 7T #2 Al £300,000,000/% 7T
RMB281,070,000) by the creation of 2,000,000,000 Ufﬁ ) 75" A K #281,070,0007T ) + & B%0.178
additional shares of HK$0.10 each ranking pari passu in all REIRARN ZERFERE
respects with the then existing shares of the Company.
(o)  On 9 July 2007, the Company issued 70,000,000 new by RZZEZLFLANHE RNARNULARE

ordinary shares by private placing at an issue price of
HK$0.30 each. The shares issued rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing shares of the Company.

75 2 3 7770,000,000% & i - § [R0.3% T
BARIRAEBRN =R RSHES -

LHEBERAE —TTNFER
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30. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) During the year ended 30 June 2008, 8,680,000 share
options were exercised. Details of which have been set out
in Note 34. The shares issued rank pari passu in all respects
with the then existing shares of the Company.

(d) On 25 May 2009, 500,000 share options were exercised.
Details of which have been set out in Note 34. The shares
issued rank pari passu in all respect with the existing shares

30 T@ERKRAE =)

s ()

(© m:zf/\ﬁﬁﬂ*JrEl,ﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁ
680,000, M A% # + FF 15 B I 5234 1T
{ IRNEIRBEROZEBRSER -

@ R-ZZAFHEA=—+AH 5000000 8
RIECITE  FIERM 34 BITRHER
ARERNZER SR

of the Company.
31. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE 31. O i $% o] B [ 12 5 B3 B3 1
PREFERENCE SHARES
Convertible redeemable preference shares, issued and fully BTN R [ ER N B o E LR
paid:
Number of shares Amount
3 51 x|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BEAE _—TTN\F ZBTBAE _—TTN\F
Notes ’000 ’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff 5 T % Tt ARBFTET AR¥ETT
At 1 July and 30 June REA—HBHE
NA=1+H 460,000 460,000 184,653 184,653
Represented by: B aE:
Convertible redeemable A 8832 1] fE B8 iR
preference shares (@) 350,000 350,000 142,406 142,406
Convertible redeemable A #2427 fE (ol
preference A shares 18 S ARR (o) 110,000 110,000 42,247 42,247
460,000 460,000 184,653 184,653
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31. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (cContinued)

@

On 29 June 2006, the Company issued 250,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares of par
value of HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$0.40
each for cash. In April 2007, the Company exercised
the option to require the subscriber to further
subscribe for an additional 100,000,000 convertible
redeemable preference shares at HK$0.40 each
pursuant to the relevant agreement. On 22 June
2007, the Company issued these 100,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares of par
value of HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$0.40
each for cash.

On 29 December 2006, the Company issued
110,000,000 convertible redeemable preference A
shares of par value of HK$0.10 at a subscription
price of HK$0.40 each in respect of the acquisition of
a subsidiary.

All the above convertible redeemable preference shares can
be converted into ordinary shares at HK$0.40 per share.
The major terms of the above-mentioned preference shares
are set out below:

U

For the convertible redeemable preference shares
issued on 29 June 2006 and 22 June 2007, the
preference share holders (“the Preference Shares
Holders”) has the right, exercisable at any time from
the date of issue to 15 June 2009 and 7 June 2010
respectively (the dates being the 10 business days
before the third anniversary of the respective dates of
initial issue of the convertible redeemable preference
shares) (“Conversion Period”), to convert the
preference shares into fully paid ordinary shares. The
Company has the right, exercisable following the end
of the conversion period and up to the third
anniversary of the date of the initial issue of the
preference shares, to redeem all or part of the
preference shares or to request the subscriber to
convert all or part of preference shares into fully paid
ordinary shares.

31. ITER T EEEERRG =)

@ R-BEAFAA-t+AA AAF
BAMRERR £ 5 31 72 0 (5 5 190,408 7T

3% 17250,000,0000% &= i% E 1B0.1078 7T 2
AEBAERELKREN REE

tFNA AR REBEEBEHRITE
% F o BRREE A LS %0.40% ST E S
73 #8100,000,000/% 7] 3 3 7] B [E] {8 5
e MR—_EELtFENAZF+-H AR
B AWENR € 5 IR B R0.40B M R B
{& %% 77 5%100,000,0000% &F % M {E0.1078
JU 2 ] B i n] fE O] 8 T PR o

b) RZZTEERFF+_A=Z+NA X2
AREE-—MBARMERBEESR
0.407% JT 3 17110,000,0008% & A% ™ &
0.10/ 7T 2 Al 883 A] & BB o AR AR 5 ©

b3t pr R R] B ] B (O] 48 5 B9 AT 2 8 1%0.40
ATTEBRSEBRR -ARLEBERNER
5T

(i) BR_ZBEZERFAAZFTNARZ=ZE
ELERNRAZ T ZHETZAERA

BREABRBRNME  BERRER (&
FEERBRRDEEBETR (XAQBK

NMMEEERSZE_FTZENF A
+HEEBARZE—ZFEFXALtHZAE
BmABEEERERSG 2 TE2 %858
fE (88 6 8 |) (T o] B FE] 88 42 48 50 PR AR
MREHREBERKRG - AR B #
RERIAEREZELERER O &Y%
THHER=-BEFHM  EXKELFAHM
BERHBNEERBRNDKERREASE
BAEXHTNEERRNDABEHMR T
AR -

LHEBERAE —TTNFER
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31. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (cContinued)

U

(i)

(Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company
and the Preference Share Holders entered into a
supplemental agreement and agreed to extend the
Conversion Period for a further 12 months from the
expiry date of the Conversion Period such that the
Preference Share Holder shall have the right to
convert the convertible redeemable preference shares
held by it at any time from the date of issue to 15
June 2010 and 7 June 2011 (the dates being 10
business days before fourth anniversary of the date of
initial issue of 250,000,000 and the 100,000,000
convertible redeemable preference shares,
respectively.

For the convertible redeemable preference A shares
issued on 29 December 2006, the preference share
holder (the “Preference A Share Holder”) has the
right, exercisable at any time from the date of issue to
19 December 2008 (the date being the 10 business
days before the second anniversary of the date of
initial issue of the convertible redeemable preference
shares) (“Preference A Shares Conversion Period”), to
convert the preference shares into fully paid ordinary
shares. The Company has the right, exercisable
during the preference A shares conversion period, to
redeem all or part of the preference shares. The
Company also has the right, exercisable following the
end of the preference A shares conversion period
and up to the second anniversary of the date of the
initial issue of the preference shares, to request the
subscriber to convert all or part of preference A
shares into fully paid ordinary shares.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Company
and the Preference A Share Holder have agreed to
extend the Preference A Shares Conversion Period
for the convertible redeemable preference shares to
19 December 2009.
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31. CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE
PREFERENCE SHARES (cContinued)

(i)

The convertible redeemable preference shares and
convertible redeemable preference A shares are not
transferable and do not carry the right to vote. Each
share is entitled to be paid a fixed cumulative
preferential dividend in priority to any payment to the
holders of any other class of shares at the rate of
3.5% per annum on the amount paid up or credited
as paid up. No payment of dividends on the
convertible redeemable preference shares and
convertible redeemable preference A shares unless at
the relevant dividend payment due date, the
Company has sufficient distributable reserves to
cover the payment of such dividends.

31. RO EEE BRI G =)

(i)

A EE AT R @ 8 SR AR AR ) K AT E R ]
BOEEARRKROD AT EEN L H
MERER - BRI A EKIEE
REFBERE ZREZERMNEER
EAEMBERNERDNFTEA  LAF
B RI%LEHEHELTUAEEED
BERAE - BRAEEREINHEE
B - & R AT 2 R R B8 o AR Ak (0
BERE  ARRARAADIKRENA
BNBREKRES -

LHEEERAE —TTNFER

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= & H

nv.

For the year ended 30 June 2009

BE-_ZZNEFRA=THILFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

75 3 2% Y 7

The follow are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movement thereof during the current and
prior reporting periods:

E3E IR

AEEARZA EHERE
B)RENEFHMT

EXHRBEE (B

Impairment Impairment
loss loss Impairment
recognised in recognised in loss
Accelerated respect of Change respect of  recognised in Bad debts
depreciation other in fair value trade respect of directly
allowance receivables of properties receivables inventories written off Tax losses Total
MEHE HOREER DEATE HEIBEKER  HFEZEE HREE
RHE 2HESR g2 2RESR 5fi] Bk EACY o a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETR ARB T ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE
At 1 July 2007 R-ZZETLE
+A-8H (38) - (5,247) - - - 5,285 -
Exchange realignment IE 3 % 4 - 43 - - - (47) -
(Charged) credited to GIA)NBRREE
consolidated income BaEET
statement 10 - (3,992 3,550 989 871 (1,428) -
Effect of change intaxrate ~ R ER\EE 7 F & 3 - 82 - - - (85) -
At 30 June 2008 RZZENE
~NA=ZTH @1) - 9,114) 3,550 989 871 3,725 -
Exchange realignment & H AR - — ") 5 - — 2 -
(Charged) credited to GtA) B REA
consolidated income Baxf
statement (131) 18 212 (1,031) (240) (304) 1,476 -
Effectof change intaxrate ~ i R&EE 7 & 5 - (868) 303 110 97) 547 -
At 30 June 2009 RZZTNE
~A=tH (147) 18 9,777) 2,827 859 470 5,750 -

At 30 June 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB57,539,000 (2008: RMB56,279,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately RMB28,447,000
(2008: RMB20,948,000) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses of approximately RMB29,092,000 (2008:
RMB35,331,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. At 30 June 2009, approximately RMB16,878,000
(2008: RMB15,531,000) included in the above unused tax
losses will expire after five years from the year of
assessment to which they relate. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

B=E

SEETAFAASTALEE

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY AND

ASSOCIATES

During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Group disposed
of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Magic Gain Investments
Limited, and three indirectly held associates, Orient Metro
Limited, PT Orient Metro Utama and Now Gain Limited
(“Magic Gain Group”) to an independent third party. The net

33. HEMEB X

HrE AT

s

ZNER ﬂE—I—EIiF rEEER

2 & W B 2 7 Magic Gain
Investments Limited )32: BIEEEEER 0] =
7~ |] » Orient Metro Limited * PT Orient Metro
Utama K Now Gain Limited ([ Magic Gain&

\|
/!

Hze—%
it &

liabilities of Magic Gain Group disposed of were as follows: DFRIE =% -Magic Gank & 2z B &
FREHENT
RMB’000
AREEF T
Interests in associates A ANCIPA - X _
Other receivables H th B I BR 3K 9,779
Other payables Hn TR (10,360)
(581)
Release of exchange translation reserve FR [ SINDE % 48 67)
Amounts due from Magic Gain Group (Note) ~ Magic Gain £ B & 5 (41:%) 15,460
Loss on disposal mEZEE (9,349)
Total consideration BR(E 5,463
To be satisfied by: WERESR
Other receivables (Note 23) H b pE W BR (f/7223) 5,463
Net cash inflow arising from disposal (Note) AHEEE 2B RLFE Wit) —
Note: e 3E -

Pursuant to a purchase and sales agreement entered into on 30
June 2008, the Group agreed to transferred its entire equity
interests in Magic Gain Investments Limited together with the
amounts due from Magic Gain Group of approximately
RMB15,460,000 at the date of disposal for a consideration of
HK$6,240,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,463,000). Such
consideration had been included in other receivables as at 30 June
2008 and was fully settled during the year ended 30 June 2009.

The subsidiary and associates disposed of during the year ended
30 June 2008 had no significant impact on the results or cash
flows of the Group.

R_ZEENFAA=ZTHZEEH=Z A5EF
& & Magic Gain Investments Limited /] 7 5 ## 25
EHMagmGam BEMBERIABHARKE
15,460,0007T - 1M i & & & /6,240,000 7T (18 %
# AR #5,463,00070 ) - WL RTER =TT N\F A
=+EMREE B \L%EEWE?H& IS
—EENFERNA=ZtTBHZEEE -

RZZZNERNAZ=T B IFE H S
ERANARBAEE 2R RABREATE -

LHEEERAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

BE_ZZNFRA=ZTHLEE
34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme, the
Company may grant options to employees of the Group
(including executive directors of the Company) to subscribe
for shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date and as at the approval date of refreshment
from time to time, excluding for this purpose shares issued
on the exercise of options. The subscription price will be
determined by the Company’s board of directors and will
not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares, (i) the average of the closing price of
the shares quoted on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the grant date and (i) the closing price of the shares on the
grant date.

At 30 June 2009, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the share option scheme was 1,000,000 (2008: 4,048,000),
representing 0.2% (2008: 1%) of the ordinary shares in
issue at that date.
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by

B 75 3 2% P 5

directors and employees during the year are:

3. BB HIAXS @)

FREFLREIRBZEREZESHOT

Number of share options
HRESE
Granted Exercised Exercised Lapsed Exercise
Outstanding at during the during the  Outstanding at during the during the Outstanding at price per
Category of participant Date of grant 1 July 2007 year year 30 June 2008 year year 30 June 2009 Exercise period share
RZBTtE RZBENE RZBBLE
SEEER REBH tA-B REARE REATE AAZ+E REARE REAKH AAZ+HE fTiRY BRITEE
HKS
BT
Directors 6 July 2007 - 5,240,000 (3,740,000) 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) — 6 July 2007 to 5 July 2008 1.14
= ZZTHFLARA ZZTHFLARA
EETN\E
+tARA
31 January 2008 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 (500,000) - 1,000,000 31 January 2008 to 0.74
—ZZ\F—A=+—H 30 January 2011
—ZZ\F-A=+-H
FE——F
—A=+H
Employees 6 July 2007 - 5,988,000 (4,940,000 1,048,000 - (1,048,000) —  6July 2007 to 5 July 2008 1.14
&8 ZZTLFLARA ZZTLFLARA
ETTN\E
+ARA
- 12,728,000 (8,680,000) 4,048,000 (500,000) (2,548,000) 1,000,000
Note: All the above share options are exercisable on the grant MiaE: A LR R BB IR AT AR IR Y B BRAT (-

date.

In respect of the share option exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is

HK$0.69 (2008: HK$1.34).

1.3470) ©

BERFACTENBRE RITERAZFY
TEERRBEOT(ZZEZNEF:EE

LHEBERAE —TTNFER
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 30 June 2008 were calculated using the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

3. BB HAXS @)

RZEENFNA=ZTHELIFERRENE
[i% # 7% = UBinomiallE X T EEREFE 2 A
FE - BANLXEMT :

31 January 2008 6 July 2007
—EENE  CTTtE
—HA=+—H + ANHE

Weighted average share price I 15 i B
Weighted average exercise price METEHITER
Expected volatility SEEEN

Expected life T8 8 5 Ak HR
Risk-free rate 3 b b R
Expected dividend yield TEHEIAR B %

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over one year and
reference to the companies in the similar industry. The
expected life used in the model as been adjusted, based on
management best estimate, for the effect of non transfer
ability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of RMB2,913,000

for the year ended 30 June 2008 (2009: Nil) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.
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35.

SEEAFAASTALER

COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING
LEASES

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB11,600,000 (2008:RMB9,128,000). The
investment properties generated rental yields of 6.91%
(2008: 5.19%) on an ongoing basis. The investment
properties held have committed tenants for the next one to
five years (2008: two to five years).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following minimum lease payments:

35. EEFHLIKIE

AEBEERSEHEA

RERDEKR AL AR E11,600,0007T (AR
#£0,128,0007T ) * U IF B EE RN E Y
XS W SEXTELENNB (T )\ F:
519%) - B BREMEMHEPABERK—
EFRFE(ZZEENF: _ERHF ) )EEHE -

REFZR AEBARBR TIFERERZ
B2 RKREHEONRAT

2009 2008
—EEBAE —EENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBEFT
Within one year —FNR 11,951 7,475
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEEZRFNRN 8,182 3,339
20,133 10,814

The Group as lessee REBEREABEA
The Group leases certain of its equipment under operating AEFENLEHONHEES TH#ES AN

leases arrangements. Leases are negotiated for a term
ranging from two to five years (2008: two to five years) and
rentals are fixed. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals and terms of renewal were established in the leases.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for

HEMNITMEERF (ZTEZTNF WF
=snfF)MEcsCcBEE - RAERBELHE
WEBAHAEE -

REZEB  AEEAKE Z TR BUE 2 & &

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HENSRENRBEOT :
operating leases which are payable as follows:

2009 2008
—ETAE ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Within one year —F R 15 15
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ FEZE HE A 14 29
29 44

LHEBERAE —TTNFER
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36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

37.

At the balance sheet date, certain assets of the Group were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as
follows:

36. EIEBEE

REBR AEEBHAEEABRERT
BT LEERTIEE RGNS BN ER
wmF :

2009 2008

—ETAE ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T

Property, plant and equipment W MENEE 2,745 2,787
Investment properties WEYE 40,765 44,468
Prepaid lease payments HEFEN A 17,811 18,110
Bank deposits RITIF R 57 1,017
Time deposits FHEFER 12,527 11,272
73,905 77,654

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

@)

On 25 April 2008, a PRC subsidiary of the Company
had been served with a writ of summons in the PRC
and was being claimed for a total amount of
approximately RMB22,000,000 under a guarantee
being allegedly issued by the PRC subsidiary. The
PRC subsidiary has appointed a firm of legal counsel
to represent the PRC subsidiary to defend the claim
and legal proceedings. First court hearing was held
on 20 October 2008 and the legal proceedings are
still in progress and no conclusion has been drawn
on the legal proceedings up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements. Based on
the legal advice and the facts or evidences presented
to the court during the first court hearing, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group would
have strong grounds to defend and accordingly, no
provision is required to be made in the consolidated
financial statements.
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BnE
37.

38.

39.

*

SEINERASTRLEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)  On 20 October 2009, the Company received a writ of
summons from BALZBERFRMHBR DA (Xi'an
Ying Feng Technology Co., Ltd.”) (“Ying Feng”). Ying
Feng (as plaintiff) brought a civil claim (the “Claim”) at
ILWPEE AT AR HRAREP (Intermediate People’s
Court of Changzhi City, Shanxi Province*) against
Techwayson Industrial Limited (B4R & 2 (R B R
A \]) (“Techwayson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (as defendant), for damages of
approximately RMB6,970,000 in respect of product
liability arising from defects in the programmable logic
controller system used in &ifi blast furnace top gas
recovery turbine unit (“TRT project”) (Changgang TRT
project*) designed and manufactured by
Techwayson. A hearing has been scheduled for 25
November 2009.

Techwayson have decided to defend against the
Claim and will seek legal advice in respect of the
merits of the Claim. The directors of the Company
expect that there will not be any immediate adverse
financial effect on the earnings, net assets and
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Details of the Claim are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 October 2009.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the finance cost charged
on bank borrowings wholly repayable within 5 years of
approximately RMB13,462,000 remained unpaid during the
year and is included as accrued interest (2008:
RMB10,131,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The balances with related parties at the balance sheet date
are disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements.

The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
directors of the Company, details of their emoluments are
disclosed in Note 17. The remuneration of the directors of
the Company is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

For identification purposes only

37. N AB B @)

) ARER _??jLiJrﬂ TBERE
aenFamR-B28 TREDN LA
ERA mqﬂi&)\E/ﬂnﬁﬁ,ﬁEm%’f%
(FINER2A ([EEFRDELRSE

ZRETRED FhaEEHRIALH
%Eﬁﬁ%ﬂmhﬂ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁiﬁ? HEKE
BEANARIEEZEGSRES SRR
EAREREME WAKSEREE
4 A R 6,970,000t - BREL B E R =
ZENF+—AZ+tHBER-

BEBRAERUTRARESBLAZE
ﬁ&f”ﬁtﬁﬁ?%%’ ARAMEEE UM
n)%*’\ SHARE RENE R AWK
fl ﬁdﬁ?&fﬂ‘%i ¥ K AT 1] B B A
BEmMBEE

ERREZFAMIHENARABHRS
—ETAFTAZTZBZAE-

38. TEXFBEXH

REBEE-_ZTTNAFAAZTHLEFEHRE
PHEERTEIEIFRHOARE
13,462,0007T * B 5 A AN 50 F N 18 oK S AT 3
B ABHAMBE(ZEZENF AR
10,131,0007T ) °

FEALRS

MEATIRZINBBECEEERERAYE
EHMMTRESHIBERER -

39.

EERAMMEEEE—FTEERAE X
NEEME 2 BERERWE17 - EE B
TR EZESRBEAARBERTEBE
il 7 °

LHEEERAE —TTNFER

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. T EMBAE
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2009 are RZZEZNFANAZFTRHZETENB AR
as follows: MERMAT
Place of Attributable
incorporation/ Class of Issued share capital/  equity interests
Name of subsidiary operation shares held registered capital of the Group Principal activities
3035 A 2817/ AT EAERK
B A5 &8 B E RERKEN EHERSE FHEREHE ETEEB
EHRBEEFY)ERAR The PRC Contributed capital  HK$60,000,000 100% Design, supply and
(Techwayson Industrial Limited)* integration of
automation and control
systems and property
investment
BHEREE RIDARATF B BABR 78 #:60,000,0007T 100% WER:T - HHEMES
BENEIEG R RY
ERE
Techwayson Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 10,000 shares of 100% Provision of management
HK$1 each services
BEAREEBARA B LB AR 10,000/% & i& 174 7T 100% EHE RS
Techwayson Tradmg Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 10,000 shares of 100% Trading of automation
HK$1 each products and electronic
components
EHEREFERS BE gt 10,0008% & B 174 7T 100% BEBtRE ?f#ﬂl
etz E
R ORI BRAR The PRC Contributed capital  RMB100,000,000 100% Design, supply and
(Techwayson Technology integration of
(Shenzhen) Limited)* automation and control
systems
EEREE ORI ARAE Bl BAER A & #60,000,0007T 100% HFR - HEMES
Bl zs [ ES
Smart Gain Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 1 share of HK$1 100% Trading of natural
resources and other
mineral products
BTEREDMERRRA BE & 1R R1E T 100% HFEXAERM
BEERES
Famous State Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 1 share of HK$1 100% Investment in listed
securities
Famous State Investments Limited & 7 gl 1R R1E T 100% EmEHFEE
Weina Land Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Shares 2 shares of 100% Property investment
HK$1 each
KHBEHR QA BE gl 2RERIB T 100% #FEKRE
Fame Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 shares of 51% Trading of mobile modules
HK$1 each
KETAHRRA HE L@k 100/ & I8 178 7T 51% FHRAMHHEE
* The English name is for identification purpose only.
Note: Al entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned Mie: FBRTERIZEEHYAIIGEEA D

enterprises. ¥o
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

41.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group to give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

40. T EMB AT &)

LRROEAANESRATEVELAS
AEZARENBAAEHN AAAEER
BIIHAA B R AARE S BIRERTE -

AL (] Y B8 2 ) AN AR JE AR IR B A A A B
ERFEELMAREEBRTES

BALANCE SHEET INFORMATIONOF 41. ATz 5 EBEBREE

THE COMPANY
2009 2008
“EBEBAE —EEN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR T ARBEF T
Non-current asset IEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WERWE AT 1,130 1,130
Current assets mENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries OPEE RN @ 5,056 5,024
Other receivables H b fE U BR X 501 5,463
Bank balances and cash B RIBTHES 504 42
6,061 10,529
Current liabilities e A&
Other payables HithEeEm 144 273
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI E (@) 7,258 7,267
7,402 7,540
Net current (liabilities) assets TEEEFE (AF) (1,341) 2,989
(211) 4,119
Capital and reserves N
Ordinary share capital I 58 AR AR A 44,031 43,987
Convertible redeemable A &% $3 7] §E [0
preference shares B 5 IR R A 184,653 184,653
Reserves 1 (b) (228,895) (224,521)
(211) 4,119
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41. BALANCE SHEET INFORMATIONOF 41. ASIZ2 S EEBEEEE »)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries

(a)

BB RFR (KB AT )

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing SHERIFER ZTNNEERTREFE
and repayable on demand. Koo
Reserves (o) @
Share Exchange
Share Contributed option translation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BAiEE AFEE  RERERE TERGEE RatgsE FLb ]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRE ARBTRT ARBTR
At 1 July 2007 RZZEZLF
+HA—H 7,160 67,614 - 6,011) (68,418) 345
Exchange difference M HRERBRESIR
arising from translation ZH
of financial statements — — — (11,916) — (11,916)
Recognition of equity- AEMEEAETD
settled share based YN EEER
payments (Note 34) (Kt 7#34) - - 2,913 - - 2,913
Issue of shares BT
— upon placement of — BR1D A%
shares 12,254 — — — — 12,254
— exercise of share — TR R
options 9,721 — (1,819) — — 7,902
— transaction costs — EBEZRGKRA
attributable (183) - - - - (183)
Loss for the year FEEEE — - — - (235,836) (235,836)
At 30 June 2008 RZZZNF
NA=+8 28,952 67,614 1,004 (17,927) (304,254)  (224,521)
Exchange difference MK BES e
arising from translation 3
of financial statements — - — 35 - 35
Transfer to reserve for AR R E
value of share options s
lasped — - (650) - 550 -
Issue of shares upon TEERES R
exercise of share B 1n 817
options 462 — (182) - - 280
Loss for the year FEEBRE — — - - (4,689) (4,689)
At 30 June 2009 RZZEZNEF
NA=+8 29,414 67,614 362 (17,892) (308,393) (228,895)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_TThFAA=THLFE

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

)

Grant of share options

On 21 August 2009, the Company announced the
grant of 17,948,000 share options at an exercise
price of HK$1.18 per share pursuant to the new
share option scheme granted to the directors and
chief executive of the Company.

Major acquisition

Subsequent to 30 June 2009, the Group completed
its acquisition of the entire equity interests in Ocean
Vast Corporation Limited (“Ocean Vast”). The
transaction was completed on 13 August 2009 and
the fair value of the acquisition cost is approximately
RMB178,579,000 was satisfied by the issue and
allotment of 175,000,000 consideration shares
(“Consideration Shares”). The fair value of the
Consideration Shares was derived from the published
price of the Company’s shares on the completion
date.

Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 30 June 2009.

42. EHHEEIHE

)

RHBE

R-ZBEZEANFNAZ-ZF+—H KRQFA
5 AR B 3 B IR 5T & 817,948,000
PITEEEBIASTT 2 ERER FA L
REZEEREHITHASR -

FEWRE

—EERAERA=ZTHE KAEB R
RKKREESEBRBERAR(TESR]D 2
EHEHTRAEZ RHR_ZEZ
NENAT=ZBZXEKERE A
FEL A AREE178,579,0008 & LA B2
B N %% 97175,000,00008 2 KB 5 ([
BEROHDIZIN - RERMDZAFER
ARBIRTEXRBEHZE ABRNER
PTEE ©

ERKRBEERFR SEEBRAIR
“ETAFRNA=ZTHZEK

LHEBERAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTThNFANA=ZTHLEE

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued) 42, HHBEEE#)
i)  Major acquisition (Continued) i) FTEWE @)
As extracted from the Company’s circular dated 30 HUBEEE AR ZZEZENFNA
June 2009, the net assets acquired in the transaction, Z—tHZBRH REMELEFEEK
and the goodwill arising, are as follows: ZEBMOT
Acquiree’s
carrying amount
and fair value
wiEEZ
REERAFE
RMB’000
ARET T
Net assets acquired BEGSZFEE
Plant and equipment HES R 51
Properties under development FEIR 113,734
Goodwill FEES 16,931
Other receivables H R MR 80
Bank balances and cash ReRBTES 104
Other payables H fth B 15 5K (459)
Tax payable FERTEIE (22,487)
Amount due to a shareholder RBEEZH (1,799)
Amount due to the minority shareholder ROVBBE 2R (78,089)
Deferred tax liabilities FEREMEAE (15,120)
12,950
Add: Wavier of the amount due to the minority m: ROBBRRZARENFEEZ R %
shareholder and tax payable 75,084
Less: Minority interests (after waiver) WL EBREREE (ReR) (29,205)
Less: Goodwill e (16,931)
Adjusted fair value of the identifiable assets, FHBREE BERIAREGEZ
liabilities and contingent liabilities NEEFHE 41,898
Goodwill EES 136,681
Total consideration, satisfied by BRE ARERO N
Consideration Shares 178,579
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42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

i)

ii)

Major acquisition (Continued)

The consideration was determined between the
vendor and the Company after arm’s length
negotiations and on normal commercial terms after
taking into accounting of the following:

— the valuation on the project land of
approximately RMB115,500,000 as at 31
March 2009 by an independent valuer, 60% of
which is approximately RMB69,300,000.
According to the valuer, the valuation was
arrived at by applying the market appoach.

—  the future prospects of the project land.

Very substantial acquisition

On 11 August 2009 and 20 August 2009, the
Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement and supplement agreement, respectively
with an independent third party to acquire the entire
interests of Boom Lotus Holdings Limited (“Boom
Lotus”), and its subsidiaries, Pine Global Holdings
Limited and Zhuhai Zhongzhu Real Estate
Development Company Ltd* Bk/EFR KB ERZER
R 2 A]) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Boom Lotus Group”) conditionally with a total
consideration of approximately HK$590,000,000. The
principal activities of the Boom Lotus Group are
development of real estates and property
management. As at the date of issue of the
consolidation financial statements, the acquisition
was still in progress. Pursuant to the ordinary
resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting dated 9 October 2009, the acquisition was
approved by the shareholders of the Company.

For further details of the acquisition, please refer to
the Company’s circular dated 23 September 2009.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.

42, FEHEEIE #)

i)

ii)

TEWE @)

REHESTRESTRAFRAUNERS
EREFBEGREAT AL :

— MHBYHEMELIHEEEEC
EENFZRAZ=Z+—RHILZHE
B & % A R #115,500,0007T © +
HIH BE0%Z - A A R &
69,300,0007T ° R FEHEE - & E
TR MIH AR -

— ITHEBZARKRERASR-

FEERWE

RZBEEZNFNAT+—BERZZEZ
NENAZ+TH RaE—BIE=
FERIEEHRRkAERHE BRA
AAIFEBEGREREERIERERD
AIERDRENBRAR MFHRE
BRAGMKEBFTHREMERZAER
NA(GBIERE®E )22 ET
BAZHEHERD BREABE
590,000,0007C ([FEE W ) - E& 2
TEEHAEMERRLRMEETE -
RGATBHRERLE B ERKED
HETH - BBER -_ZEAETAA
ARTZBRERRS BB ERRE
TN ECEREE -

ERUBERARE FE2FAAAHA
PBR-_ZZENFAA-+T=BZBHR-

LHEEERAE —TTNFER
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_TThFAA=THLFE

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

iv)

Vi)

Issue of shares

On 13 August 2009, 175,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each the Company were issued
to independent third parties as consideration for the
acquisition of Ocean Vast.

Proposed change of name

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of Directors
passed on 27 October 2009, the Company
announced the proposed change of the Company’s
name to “China Uptown Group Company Limited (“F
Bl E3 BB R AR, The change of name will be
subject to the passing of a special resolution by the
shareholder of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Proposed change of financial year
end

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of Directors
passed on 27 October 2009, the Company
announced the proposed change of the financial year
end date from 30 June to 31 December.
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42, HFEBHEEIE #)

iv)

Vi)

BHITRAD

R_ZEZETAFNA+ = 8
175,000,0000% & f%0.107% 7T 2 31 & A%
DRITNBYE=ZF1EABESKE
KB -

et I GG ]

BEEEFER_ZEZTNFTA=-+t
HBRBZRZ ARAEMAREHE
# ® 22 A&/ China Uptown Group
Company Limited ([ H B -5 & B & R
AR - BBz EHRBHFEARB B
BT BRRBAFRE LEAARNAARE
BBABIABEREFTER -

ERMBEFEEER

REEFEXR _ZETAF+A-TL
HBEBZRE ARESHUKRAEEHR
HANA=tRESZR/RtT-_A=1t—H8H-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
BE_ZZhAFEASAA=Z+TBILEFE

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued) 42, EEHEEIE »)

vii) Extension and change of terms of vi) ERREX AR AERE

convertible redeemable preference
shares

On 23 October 2009, the Company entered into a
supplemental agreement to (a) extend the Preference
A Shares conversion period for a further 12 months
from the expiry date of the Preference A Shares
conversion period such that Preference A shareholder
shall have the right to convert the Preference A
Shares held by it at any time from the date of issue to
10 December 2010; (b) allow the Preference A
Shares conversion period to be extended
automatically for a period of twelve (12) months with
effect from each expiry date of the Preference A
Shares conversion period unless (i) Preference A
shareholder serves a written notice on the Company
notifying its intention of not extending the Preference
A conversion period for a further twelve (12) months
not later than seven (7) days before the expiry date of
the Preference A Shares conversion period, and (i)
the Company agrees not to extend the Preference A
Shares conversion period for a further twelve (12)
months upon receiving such notice; and (c) amend
the terms of the sale and purchase agreement such
that the Preference A Shares become transferable.

Details of the extension and change of terms of the
convertible redeemable preference shares are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 23
October 2009.

JE IR AR X

RZBZEAF+RARZ+T=H KRQF
BE - NEEBRAOMTIHEQNE
EARBRHEEER 2 AR+ @
A-BHREIERRE BEARBEAR
BREEEAREBETZEEE-_T—F
Fr+-ATBERZEMKRE §E#&F
BZBEABRBEBHRSL A O#EE
FAREBRBAEHER T _—_BEH BE
SEAREB R I fE i 2 B AR BR 3E()
BRABRK A ARNELARE R E
mBARMTEREtRAARFHEHE®E
B BAMEAETNERELAKRE R
B4 @A - R@A 2 7 U3 % B
B RAETERELABRERE+ @
A OEFTEE & Z &R R EEAKR
A A BB o o

BRI R R ok o 4 A% o 1 (848 5 A
BRzHEMIBRAATER AT
ERE+AZT=BZAL -

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43. LB

ETHBBRFETETHIBRUNEAFEZ
25 HA -

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

RHEEERA2A —TTAFFER 143



Schedule of the Properties Held as Investment Properties/Properties for Own Use

BEERENE ERNERE

At 30 June 2009
R-ZZEZAFRA=TH

A.

PROPERTIES IN PRC

A IRPEZME

Lease Group’s
Location Usage Area term interest
X&E
12 itk 2 HEY FEfhEL
Land Parcel No. T205-0035 located at Hi-tech Industrial Park, Office premises and car Site area - Medium 100%
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, The PRC parking spaces approximately 8,159 sq. m. A
REERERIIE LRGSR MEEE R BTRNEREES WEEE — 498,159F 7 K
#5957 T7205-0035/) £ 3t
Gross floor area -
approximately 17,500 sg. m.
BELEE — £17,500F 7 K
- N
PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG B. iR&E&EZMXE
Approximate Lease Group’s
Location Usage saleable area term interest
X£E
e itk THERR HEH FElEED
Suite 1501, 15th Floor, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Office premises - 2,605 sg. ft. - 100%
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon. Own use
NEER DI B RIBI0F: 318 A b — H15181501F BYENE - 2,605 5 R
BER
Unit 302, 3/F., Lippo Sun Plaza, No. 28 Canton Road, Kowloon. Office premises 79.06 sq. m. Medium 100%
NEEE R 8285 h & K5 & 5318302F BYENE 79.06%F ;5 K 8
Unit 702, 7/F., Lippo Sun Plaza, No. 28 Canton Road, Kowloon. Office premises 79.06 sq. m. Medium 100%
NEEER B8 N E ARG ESZTEI02E BYENE 79.06%F 5 K o8
Unit 520, 5/F., East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Kowloon. Office premises 53.51sg. m. Medium 100%
NEEINEBIE B8 RE B % L61E520F BYENE 5351 7 % o8
Units 708 & 709, 7/F., East Ocean Centre, Office premises 107.02 sg. m. Medium 100%
98 Granville Road, Kowloon.
NEEINE B2 B8 BB B X R L TIB708 L 709F BYENE 107.02% 75 K 8
Unit 711, 7/F., East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Kowloon. Office premises 53.51sg. m. Medium 100%
NEMEFZERBRREFERLTEMNE BYENE 5351 7 % 8
Unit 713, 7/F., East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Kowloon. Office premises 53.51sg. m. Medium 100%
NEMERZERBRREHERLTETZE BYENE 5351 7 % 8
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